
MINUTES OF THE KENT COUNTY LEVY COURT 
COMBINED BUSINESS MEETING 

KENT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 
555 BAY ROAD, DOVER, DE 

LEVY COURT CHAMBER, ROOM 203 
TUESDAY, JULY 18, 2017 

Call to Order 

The Combined Business meeting of the Kent County Levy Court was called to 
order at 7:00 p.m. by President Banta. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

The Invocation was led by Mr. Howell and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by 
Mr. Angel. 

Moment of Silence for our Troops 

A moment of silence was observed for our Troops and led by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll call and Determination of Quorum 

Allan F. Angel 
Eric L. Buckson 
James E. Hosfelt, Jr. 
Glen M. Howell 
Terry L. Pepper 
George W. Sweeney, Sr. 
P. Brooks Banta 

Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Vice President 
Commissioner 
President 

There are seven (7) Commissioners present at Roll Call. 
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Adoption of Agenda 

Motion was made by Mr. Pepper; seconded by Mr. Angel; carried by roll call 
vote seven (7) yeas to adopt the Agenda. 

Motion to approve Levy Court Business Meeting Minutes of Tuesday, June 27, 
2017 and Levy Court Business Meeting Minutes ofTuesday, July 11, 2017 made 

by Mr. Angel; seconded by Mr. Hosfelt; carried by roll vote seven (7) yeas. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Employee of the Month - August 2017 

The following was read into the record by Lorri Tanaka: 

Kent County Department Heads have selected John R. Witzke from the 
Department of Public Safety as the August 2017 Employee of the Month. 

John started with Kent County in February 2001 and serves as a Paramedic III in 
the Division of Emergency Medical Services. His primary duties include treating 
patients using advanced emergency care procedures and insuring the high quality 
delivery oflife support techniques. As the Sergeant for his shift, John is the team 

leader responsible for assisting the Field Supervisor with communication, 
evaluation, and continuous training. In addition, he performs Special Ops duties 

as a member of the bike team and technical rescue group. 
J 

For many years John has served on the Safe Summer Day Committee responsible 
for planning the annual health & safety event held at Brecknock Park. After 

serving as Co-Chair, John assumed full Committee Chair duties this year and 
earned high praise from former chairman Glen "Wayne" McCarty for his 
leadership and organizational skills. Of particular note was John's personal effort 

to make the annual Patriotic Presentation a moving tribute to the first responders, 

military service members, law enforcement officers, and correctional officers in 
attendance at the event. John served many years in the Air Force Reserve and was 
deployed to active service several times during his career before retiring. 

According to Public Safety Director Colin Faulkner, "John continuously reflects 

the values of our Public Safety Department and has been a consistent top 
performer held in high regard by his peers and our administration alike. He 
welcomes any challenge our department offers and excels as an assistant 
supervisor." Congratulations John on a job well done! John resides in New 

Castle County. 

Kent County Levy Court 
August 2017 Employee of the Month 

John R. Witzke 
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On this, the 18th day of July 2017, 
The Levy Court of 

Kent County, State of Delaware, does hereby recognize 
John R. Witzke 
Paramedic III 

Department of Public Safety- Emergency Medical Services Division 
for his exceptional initiative, dedication, and conscientiousness in 

the delivery of services to the citizenry of the County. 

07/18/17 

The commissioners along with the County Administrator met John at the front for 
the presentation of the award. 

Mr. Banta: Seventeen years of service with the County is pretty remarkable and 
we really appreciate the job that you and all the paramedics do to save lives. I 
know the State took away about $380,000 of our funding but we're going to 
scratch around to find that to keep all you guys and gals in good health and saving 
lives; we're going to do that, we'll find that. 

Mr. Pepper: Thank you, John; congratulations, job well done, job well done. 
John, if I've got to describe you I would say you're Mr. Positive Attitude. I mean, 
you've got a positive attitude on just about everything, you step up and take over 
duties that some folks won't. You did an outstanding job with the Safe Summer 
Day; I'm just appreciative of what you do and for your leadership with the 
paramedics. As we say all the time you folks are the ones that make us look 
good; you're the ones that are out there riding around in the vehicles that are 
marked Kent County Levy Court on them. You're the folks that people identify 
with more so than us, so thanks again, keep up the good work and just keep that 
positive attitude; I really appreciate it. 

Mr. Buckson: Everything he said and more. I appreciate your service; your 
service to the County as well as to our Country. It just seems like you step up 
and excel at everything you do so I ask that you keep doing it. I sincerely 
appreciate everything you do. Thank you. 

Mr. Angel: I can't say much more. If you're going to change, change for the 
better. 

John Tinger: The chief apologizes for not being here tonight. We are very 
proud of John and all of the stuff that he does for this department and for the 
County. He is a prime example of serving Kent County with pride. He is an 
example that many of the younger members of the department follow. 
Congratulations, John. 

Mr. Howell: We greatly appreciate your work; not just anybody can do it. We're 
glad to have you. 
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Mr. Hosfelt: When I say thank you for your service that means quite a bit. Not 
only for Kent County but for our Armed Services and everything you've done. 
Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: John thanks for everything that everybody has said so far. I 
wasn't able to make it to the Safe Summer Day; I heard it was a great success. I 
had another engagement but I will be there next year, looking forward to your 
successes continuing to make that a great event. That is one of the things that 
almost everybody in the County attends that, looks forward to and I heard you did 
a great job. We wouldn't expect any less from you. Congratulations. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: John, I would just echo everything the commissioners said. 
I think Commissioner Pepper said it best, you're Mr. Positive Attitude. Whenever 
I see you, whether it is out at Safe Summer Day or here in the building or where 
ever and I express some nice things to you, you always throw it right back, well, 
we really appreciate what the County does for us and everything. You were 
instrumental in the County and Levy Court being recognized, receiving top 
honors actually from the Employer Support for the Guard and Reserve which we 
really appreciate but it was really because of you and your service to our Country. 
Congratulations on behalf of your fellow employees for the outstanding model. 

John expressed his appreciation to the commissioners and all present. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Mr. Banta: This issue that we have before us tonight, the first one has been 
removed; the second one is one here from a tabling that was done. From that we 
will have to lift that from the table and move forward. Before we do that I would 
say that every commissioner with the exception of one was able to read the 
transcripts of the previous meeting, and we appreciate any comments you have to 
make, maybe not repetitious of the comments we heard before. We've all had a 
chance to look at it very carefully, no question about that, but I think limited 
comments would help a lot. 

Mr. Pepper: I just want to reiterate what you said. I was not here for the initial 
testimony and the public hearing; however I have had the opportunity to 
thoroughly read all the minutes from both the Regional Planning Commission and 
Levy Court Hearings on this issue and also have read all the correspondence 
along with it so I'm prepared tonight to proceed. 

Sarah Keifer stated these Public Hearings are conducted for the purpose of giving 
the citizens of the County the opportunity to present testimony on the applications 
that are before the Levy Court. Everyone will have the chance to speak. All 
statements are to be made from the podium at the front of the room. For the 
record, please give your name and address. Copies of any written exhibits or 
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statements used during the hearing should be presented for identification and 
inclusion in the record. 

For each application, the President will introduce the application; 

Then Levy Court will then receive testimony from all of those in favor; 

Testimony will then be received from those who may be opposed. 

After everyone has had an opportunity to speak, the hearing on the application 
will be closed and the Levy Court will take what action it deems appropriate. 
Levy Court's decision will be based upon public hearing testimony given at this 
meeting and a recommendation submitted to the Levy Court by the Regional 
Planning Commission. I would ask that that recommendation be included by 
reference in the permanent record of the meeting established by the Clerk of the 
Peace. 

The Public Hearing Notice of this meeting was published in the July 1, 2017 
edition of the Delaware State News. 

PETITIONS TO AMEND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AND ZONING 
MAP 

Mr. Buckson: As you' re aware, I made a motion that was unanimously approved 
by Levy Court to table this application at the last meeting; I did so as a reminder 
specific to the concern that I have and continue to have related to the rezoning of 
the entire property which in my opinion essentially enables a commercial entrance 
to go on to the Milford Neck- Pritchett Road intersection. That was my concern, 
that was my request that we come back with a, some type of a solution for that; or 
not that we just come back and request that we simply vote on it as it's presented; 
I'll leave that up to the applicant to decide. My concern, my question to 
Ms. Keifer as well as to Mr. Pepper, I asked for a review of what it would mean 
by excluding the, of what I will call the finger section, or as it's in my packet the 
18 acres and then exclude the remaining acreage. What would that mean in my 
desire to eliminate a commercial entrance on Pritchett Road- Milford Neck? I 
believe there's some correspondence but I' d like to clarify. Are you indicating 
Mr. Pepper that according to past history and Kent County Code that even a 
restriction or a reduction in the rezoning would not prohibit the commercial 
entrance from occurring? 

Mr. (W) Pepper: Mr. Buckson, as I noted in my letter, the usual rules that you 
cannot use more restrictively zoned property to access less restrictively zoned 
property but, in at least two cases Levy Court has deviated from that usual rule; 
the Royal Farms at Pearson's Comer and the Wal-Mart near Cheswold. They 
permitted Stormwater Management ponds to be located on AC zoned property as 
an accessory use to the BG zoned uses on the main part of the property. 
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Mr. Buckson: I'm not going to try and match wits with you, you're clearly a 
lawyer in this State and I am not. With that said, I find it challenging to link a 
stormwater pond with a commercial entrance, but I can only rely on what our 
lawyer that represents the County is indicating. Staff, does that statement mean to 
you that if the applicant comes in with a rezoned 18 acres, or whomever 
purchases the property comes in with a rezoned 18 acres of BG and a remaining 
parcel is AC, that based on your understanding as it's interpreted, that that would 
enable a commercial entrance, you'd see no avenue for rejecting a commercial 
entrance? 

Ms. Keifer: As things stand now I don't believe we would be able to reject the 
commercial entrance crossing the more restrictive zoned land. The code gives no 
clear guidance, there ' s no specific statement so we would have nothing to rely on 
to prohibit the commercial entrance to Pritchett Road. 

Mr. Buckson: So I get back to, as things stand now there ' s nothing that would, as 
things stand now, what would change it? There wouldn't be anything to change it 
that I am aware of, short of the applicant not utilizing that entrance. Now the 
current applicant clearly may indicate that it' s not their intention and that they 
won't do that but once they sell the property that's a concern. I bring that up, 
obviously if the applicants going to speak to address those concerns because that's 
a big one, I mean that's really a big one on my part. With that, I don't need any 
more questions . . . excuse me Ms. Keifer? I appreciate you. So at this time, I'd 
like to make a Motion that we lift Ordinance LC17-13 from the table; seconded 
by Mr. Angel; carried by roll call vote six (6) yeas; one (1) nay. 

Mr. Buckson: 
1. Ordinance LC17-13, An Ordinance to amend the Comprehensive Plan Map 
Designation and the Official Zoning Map of Kent County, Delaware pursuant to 
the provisions of Kent County Code, Vol. II, Chapter 205 Zoning, Article III, 
Section 205-8 and Section 205-9, and Article XXVIII (changes and amendments) 
effective December 01 , 2000, as amended. (Reference: Applicants & Owners: 
Robert C. & Catherine P. Murphy; Ordinance# I Application#: LC17-13 I CZ-
17-07; Proposed Zoning District: BG (General Business); Area & Location I 
ID#s: 25.35± acres on east side ofBay Rod (DE Rt. 1), 2,195+ ft. southeast ofthe 
intersection with Milford Neck Road (Co. Rd. 120), southeast of Frederica I MD-
00-152.00-01-22.00-000 & MD-00-152.00-01-23.00-000) 

Public Hearing is Open on Ordinance LC17-13 

In Favor 

Greg Moore, Becker Morgan Group, 309 South Governors Ave., Dover, DE: 
I'm representing the Murphy' s here tonight in this application. (Sworn in) In the 
interest of time we did give a brief presentation, power point in the last meeting. 
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I know there's two of you folks that weren' t here, I'm certainly willing to go 
through that quickly if you would like me to. If not we ' ll proceed on, I'll leave 
that up to you all. So proceeding on, also don't want to waste your time; 
President Banta mentioned that it' s not appropriate to come back up and say the 
same things over and over and as a result of that ... 

Mr. Banta: It' s only fair to everyone, both in the audience as well as the 
commissioner' s, we've had a chance to review all of that. Mr. Pepper has 
reviewed in detail the synopsis of the entire meeting so I think that' s fme. 

Mr. Moore: So I've asked that the folks that actually appeared last time in 
support that made a number of testimonies, some neighbors, some close, some 
farther. A number of those folks are here and I'm going to ask them to stand if 
they' re here for the Murphy's . .. in support, so you can see that those people 
continue their support for this project even after the hearing last time. Please 
stand. I don't have an exact count but you can see there ' s a considerable amount 
of support for this rezoning, and I've asked that unless there' s something very 
new where they didn't speak last time for them not to speak and just say the same 
things over in interest of saving time. I also have a petition where 12 folks who 
live in the area have signed and I'm going to tum that in. The discussion at the 
last meeting Commissioner Buckson, was around the pipe stem and we took that 
seriously. If the pipe stem is cut off, we have no intention of putting a road back 
there, we actually believe the roadway as you suggested over towards the Sports 
Complex actually makes more sense and we believe that a couple of properties 
working together actually to get access makes a lot of sense in both saving money 
and distribution of traffic so we support what you' re saying. The one thing I do 
want to show, if we go to the end, the pipe stem is a wooded area that abuts the 
roadway and could provide access. We have no intention and agree not to use 
that as our access. We did see a document from the staff that outlined where that 
pipe stem would be separated and generally they separated the entire wooded area 
which goes beyond the pipe stem. We would propose that...so that is basically the 
zoned, the 18 acres that you referred to, Commissioner Buckson, and the red is 
the 6112 acres which is being termed as the pipe stem. We propose a slightly 
modified alternate and that is to take that pipe stem back to being just the pipe 
stem and you'll see the two arrows leave two other properties that could be used 
for access over to Milford Neck Road and avoiding then the neighbors that we 
heard from last time and we respect their positions. We did have a meeting with 
the Meding' s who own the property, that the arrow closest to Route 1, goes 
through, or points to, they own that entire property and they own those frontage 
lots and we had a good meeting and I was present, it was cordial, the Murphy's 
were there. We discussed the possibility of putting a roadway across their 
property, sharing that roadway for both uses and the Murphy's actually paying for 
that and John Paradee has actually put together a memorandum of understanding 
which is under consideration by the Meding's now. We wanted to report that to 
you, that there has been good discussions. We do believe that the 6 acres actually 
is much larger and we would prefer that this option be considered, which does the 
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same thing, which is basically block the roadway by virtue of cutting off that pipe 
stem. I've asked Mr. Murphy actually to discuss the sale of that property to some 
of the neighbors so that that land stays that way and goes into adjacent residential 
lands. With that, I'll be glad to answer any questions that you might have either 
relative to that proposal or the case that we made at the last meeting. 

Mr. Banta: Greg, I have just a couple of comments to make and I'm sure you can 
answer the question. We're talking about going from the most restrictive zoning 
in the county to the one that's most open-ended with no conditions and the 
number, and I counted just so you would know, there's 119 things that can now go 
in that area if this were rezoned, and it may just may very well be, but there's 119 
things that will go there whether it's a tavern, or whether it's an automobile repair 
shop or whether it's a Royal Farms, or whether it' s a Wawa, so everyone needs to 
know that if tonight it's prevailed upon to do that, and I support the Murphy's. 
Bob Murphy's worked very, very diligently with us for the Sports Complex so 
there's no problem with Mr. Murphy, it's just the issue that this effects the entire 
County, not just the 30,000 people that each of us represent, but they represent 
180,000 people when they change the zoning because that opens the door, that 
opens the door for additional zoning, which is fine, but people need to know that 
119 things could be built there. I trust Mr. Murphy, he's talking about another 
item and I certainly want to believe that but there's no guarantee of that. So, 
whatever might go there of those 119 things we'll have to live with that, so I think 
it would be incumbent upon all of us to maybe catch our breath, maybe think 
about this and decide what might be the appropriate use, and it might be what's 
being proposed. But I'm not confident that it is, and because it's going to the 
most open ended zoning that we have I think it's something that doesn't bode 
well for the County government. Appreciate your time in coming. Do you want 
to respond back to me? I'd be glad to ... 

Mr. Moore: My answer to that would be, you preached infrastructure first, 
followed by development. To me, building the type of infrastructure with these 
overpasses and Route 1 itself that moves more people through our County than 
any other roadway in the history of Delaware; not developing on both sides of that 
is shortsighted and is not taking the proper use of the infrastructure that the 
taxpayer's are paying for. I believe that we should maximize those areas where 
there's this infrastructure and it's not just the roadway and it's not just the 
overpass; it is also the sewer facilities that are there. This is where we should be 
targeting our development and I recognize that there's some issues with your 
Comprehensive Plan, but we need to be looking for the future and the future of 
Kent County, I believe, is where infrastructure is and I am fully supportive of that. 
This property is along that zoning. We made that case last time and to me that is 
the biggest criteria that you face tonight in rezoning; is there a change in character 
of the neighborhood and does the infrastructure support the uses. I'm not here to 
tell you tonight which of those BG uses will go there. My honest opinion to you 
is it will take years. It will take years for the maturity of the area, that the 
construction needs to be finished, the Sports Complex is in its first year, but we 
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need to look to the future and we need to develop where infrastructure is. I 
couldn't have made a stronger case with the infrastructure that's around this area. 
So with that, I'll entertain other questions. 

Mr. Banta: Greg, don't you also feel that it would be important for the sake of the 
Murphy's and for the sake of the residents of Kent County and for Levy Court to 
make an appropriate decision to maybe take a little time, have some patience and 
see if the comprehensive plan or a plan might be developed that would 
accommodate what's being proposed and then there would not be the controversy 
that currently exists. I just think that to, just to rush in and change an AC zone to 
the most fulfilling zone there is, with no conditions; it's not like a conditional use. 
You probably remember the situation we had at Northridge about six months ago. 
A man wanted to build an apartment house and it would have been pristine, 
perfect for the area. All the people that lived in that area were against it, all they 
wanted to do was to leave it open land. I said well if you leave it open land then 
you go through these 119 things and so now the developers drilling bore holes, 
getting ready to build something big and there's nothing this government can do to 
stop him. Those folks didn't take the advice that I kindly gave them to just let the 
apartments go because we could put conditions on there that would allow berm to 
stay in place, all the trees that are there would have to be replanted if they failed, 
things would have happened in a much better manner. I think we're rushing into 
the situation; we need to take our time. Thank you, I appreciate your time as 
usual. 

Mr. Buckson: Greg, I'll be somewhat brief. I don't disagree that we need to get 
ahead ofthis thing, but in defense of Mr. Murphy, he's in the pipeline, he got 
started and I think we have to weigh in on his application as it stands in front us at 
this time. I do believe that the County needs to . . . will, I've requested, Staff has 
agreed to create a subcommittee that potentially, that will look at addressing this 
exact concern in this area where we address the concerns on the comp plan; 
maybe a sub plan, anyone of those things, to make sure that we get ahead of this 
thing as best we can. But we' re in front of; Mr. Murphy's in front of us now; I 
don't begrudge him for coming in here tonight as you don't either and seeing what 
he can do with his land. Mr. Murphy has to understand also that there ' s folks that 
live in that area, that we have a duty to make sure that we do what we can to make 
sure that their lives are not impacted; which is why I'm asking questions that I'm 
going to ask right now; I want to better understand where we are. My concern is 
that the rezoning does not eliminate someone else from taking possession of this 
land and then coming back to Levy Court and gaining access to that finger, short 
of a sale and requesting that that be used as an entrance. Was what you say 
etched in stone that you've created, because I don't think it can be, correct? 
Explain to me better how that red is now thereby eliminated other than you just 
say it is. You've agreed to eliminate it. I'm not meaning to be disrespectful, I just 
need to make sure I understand that. 
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Mr. Moore: If Mr. Murphy decides to sell that to one of the neighbors it's etched 
in stone. To me that's the only way to etch it in stone. Beyond that sale to 
another entity in the future, I can't with conscience and I'm not going to tell you 
something that's convenient tonight and untrue; I'm not going to do that. I've 
never did it and I'm not going to tonight. I can advise Mr. Murphy what I think 
should be done and I'm advising him that I think this is a fair compromise and I 
think honestly that access through that area is not a great access; I don't believe it 
does the best for the property. I believe an access as you suggest is better and I 
told him that. That's all I can tell you because it's not my property so I can't... 

Mr. Buckson: Again, I'm not here tonight to ... as I recognize that there are 
constituents in this crowd tonight as there were in the crowd last two weeks ago 
who wholeheartedly want me to oppose. I'm trying to take a broad open look at 
this situation; and so when I look at this I get what you're saying but then as you 
stated, you get what I'm saying. What sort of damages it even more is that we 
have evidence that it's being now listed as "For Sale," so clearly it's looked to be 
as a "Sold," property; good for Mr. Murphy, I don't have a problem with that. But 
clearly then he loses possession of whatever it is the next buyer decides to do with 
it. That's a big concern. Without first selling off that finger and I can't mandate 
that you sell that finger off, but if the finger's sold we're not having this 
conversation about the finger anymore. Right now we're having a conversation 
about, well, I hope that whoever buys it agrees to those terms. I'm saying they 
probably wouldn't. Maybe they would, I don't know. Alright, let's move on to the 
next one, the two arrows. I don't quite understand. Does that mean you're going 
to leave that, you would . . . that would be a vision to leave that as somewhat... 

Mr. Moore: Where the two arrows is .. .ifthe AC zoned property, which is the 
2.35 acres, doesn't go BG, and ifl was the engineer, I would recommend nothing 
being put there. I hear the legal position, but to me it is not usual to be putting 
support facilities on zones that are different, so I believe it could be tested in 
Court and a Judge could decide that it's not appropriate, even though it's been 
done. Sarah and I have had this discussion before, that's just the way I see the 
code. So I would see not zoning that property to BG, means it should not be used 
for BG support; stormwater management, roads, outbuildings; it's not zoned 
properly. And that's the way I see it. The arrows are allowing the Murphy 
Property then to have access over to Milford Neck Road in two different 
positions; one through possibly the Meding's and I told you that there is not a 
written agreement here tonight and the other through a property that is to the east 
of them, that would be a second option to run a road through. And we don't have 
an agreement through one of those. So all I'm trying to do is provide Mr. Murphy 
with the possibility of two locations where that roadway possibly could go. And 
I'm not here to tell you that I know which either one would be. 

Mr. Buckson: You mentioned an agreement with the Meding's potentially in their 
property; their property is the arrow closest to Route 1, correct? 
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Mr. Moore: Correct; that property plus the three that are along the roadway. 

Mr. Buckson: Who owns the property to the east of that? 

Mr. Moore: It's some person from Florida and I don't know that person and my 
understanding from Mr. Murphy that he's made contact, but hasn't had any return. 

Mr. Buckson: And that's not just me speaking, that one' s not going to work for 
me. The Meding one, the problem with that one I see is that you have a MOU 
that's not been executed, right, it's not been signed? 

Mr. Moore: Correct. 

Mr. Buckson: So tonight it's not, it's a good idea but it's just that, it's just an idea. 
But that's a big concern right now. If that was an understanding that was in 
writing than obviously I could rely on that, than we would have a different 
conversation. But we go to approve this tonight, for whatever reason the 
agreement never materializes than we're back to my concern about that back 
section. You know, again I'm not... 

Mr. Moore: If I'm right and that AC zoned can't be used to support that BG, 
which is what I would say, I'm not an attorney, you are protected. It puts 
Mr. Murphy in a position of having to get access from another location and 
protects the neighbors which is what I believe was the discussion at the last 
meeting. 

Mr. Buckson: It was, in fact it was. 

Mr. Moore: The other part of this is that this is a rezoning hearing and I don't 
want to interject access roads; I've heard all about we're going to get Route 1 
access and we're going to get this, and none of that's true until you actually go to 
proceed with that, which is in the site plan stage and that then goes back to the 
Regional Planning Commission and gets full review by this body, not Levy Court 
but the County as well as Del-Dot and others. That's an important step here and 
that is the next step; that's not what we're doing here tonight. But there would be 
a second review of this plan as to where that entrance road would be and at that 
time if there was a proposal to run a road through the Meding's, it would be 
shown and there would have to be an agreement to allow it. 

Mr. Buckson: Two things and we're going to end the discussion, because again 
I'm the guy who said that if we could gain access to Route 1 I would rezone the 
18 acres, two entrances right there and we're calling it a day. Because I think 
that's a fair situation, we could protect the residents in that back section there, we 
could potentially help that sewer district in that area. I'm not sure what the 
legalities are right now as it stands, but it could potentially help lower their debt 
service and that would be a benefit to that area. But we can't get to that right now 
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because we're still with a hypothetical MOU which doesn't guarantee access to 
Meding's and with a lawyer and Planning Services Director who have both stated 
that an applicant comes in next month they, according to their interpretation, 
would gain access to that road if they choose to. And we have an applicant who's 
not going to develop the property themselves, they're going to sell it; rightfully so, 
good for them. They're going to sell it so now they're going to lose control and as 
good intentions as Mr. Murphy may have whomever buys it is looking for money, 
they're looking to make it most successful as they can make it. So I fall back to 
I've got to find a way to approve this where it protects to the best of my ability the 
residential area in the back there or I can't support it. Right now, I am concerned 
that I don't have the mechanism to protect that area in the back. My line of 
question is done for now. 

Mr. Sweeney: I have a couple of questions for Sarah first. First of all Sarah, if 
this application is denied tonight, is there a period of time that the applicant has to 
wait before it can be resubmitted? 

Ms. Keifer: The code provides 12 months for rezoning. 

Mr. Sweeney: Are you aware through any other applications, letters of intent, 
word of mouth, of any other rezoning coming from this area? I don't know if you 
know specifics, but.. . 

Ms. Keifer: I don't believe anything new has been submitted; there's been a lot of 
chatter. 

Mr. Sweeney: A lot of chatter. What is the time frame for the 2018 Comp Plan? 

Ms. Keifer: It has to be adopted by October of2018; Staff is doing everything we 
can to try to get it done by this time next year. 

Mr. Sweeney: The 2008 Comp Plan addressed these type of zones, not here but 
within the, where infrastructure already existed. Will the '18 Comp Plan, does it 
address specifically DE Turf and the potential for economic development or 
construction of this type, any type of development around DE Turf as a driver? 

Ms. Keifer: That's certainly been an item of discussion. Our plan had been to put 
some ideas out there to see what sort of input we get from the public because at 
the end of the day it's not our plan, it's not Staffs plan it's the community's. So 
yes, our idea was to put some options out there see what kind of reaction we get. 

Mr. Sweeney: And has that been out in the public now? 

Ms. Keifer: No. Not yet. 
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Mr. Sweeney: So, it hasn't. So, sometime between now and when it comes back 
to us it will be out in the public? 

Ms. Keifer: Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Will the plan also offer recommendations for what type of 
development can exist there? 

Ms. Keifer: I think we have to be careful in a Comprehensive Plan how specific 
we get because we've got specific zoning districts. So I don't know that it will get 
that specific, I just can't speak to it yet. 

Mr. Sweeney: My concern is that, if you can remember back in the 2005 - 2006 
timeframe, during the build-up of all the developments that were coming into the 
County, I don't think it was adequately addressed what each new development 
was doing to the County at the time and I think that the comp plan which is a 
subcommittee, in essence needs to address these types of requests for applications 
around that area and, so we understand what it's going to do to that area. Because 
along with large construction, whether it's hotels or shopping districts there will 
be requests for more developments in the same type of area. So I would think 
that we'd want to wait until that 2018 comp plan was completed so we can address 
that. If you guys will just indulge me real quick, the audience members who 
stood up in support of the application could you stand up again for me please? 
I'm going to ask, if you cannot see this property from your house to please sit 
down. So in essence most everybody that is in support of this doesn't live in the 
area. You'll get a chance to speak. I don't know if anybody in opposition is going 
to get up but I'm going to ask anybody who's in opposition to please stand up. 
Again, if you can't see this from your house, if you cannot see this property from 
your house, please sit down. Okay, thank you very much. So, Mr. Murphy I have 
a lot of respect for you and your wife and what you guys did for DE Turf; I mean 
there is no doubt in my mind that your efforts not only within these chambers but 
with the State and, were very much helpful in getting that property, getting 
that project going. I am hopeful that, you know things work out but I believe that 
at this point we need to just slow down and let the comp plan work this out. My 
fear would be that you submit an application it's going to, it will taint something 
going forward, so I just want to let you know where I stood. Thank you. 

Mr. Pepper: I have a question for Staff. Looking at, from say this property south 
to the Sussex County line, would you describe the east side of Route 1, what it 
appears as, what's there, what's it look like now? 

Ms. Keifer: We'll actually I'll pull it up and show it to you. Are you interested in 
zoning or are you interested in what's actually on the ground? 

Mr. Pepper: What's on the ground? 
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Ms. Keifer: Give us just a moment and we'll show you the overview. 

Mr. Pepper: While you're doing that, the Church there just north of Milford on 
the east side of the highway, has that been drawn into Milford City limits? 

Ms. Keifer: Yes. 

Mr. Pepper: How about the subdivision behind it, that's in Milford also? 

Ms. Keifer: Yes. 

Mr. Pepper: Okay, so they've got like a ... 

Ms. Keifer: That gets you to the County line. 

Mr. Pepper: Okay. The reason I ask, I was wondering if you had any ideas to 
what's on that side of the road, the east side of the road as far as businesses; 
current businesses? 

Ms. Keifer: It's primarily scattered sites. 

Mr. Pepper: Let me help you out. From this site for the next 3 1/2 miles south of 
there; there's 24 businesses; most of them with signs on the road advertising the 
businesses. From there, actually from this site to the County line is 5 and 112 
miles, so like I said the next 3 112 miles which basically takes you to that Church I 
just asked about north of Milford, there are 24 businesses on the east side of the 
road, which I might add, are the only infrastructure they have are Route 1 in front 
of it, there's no sewer on that side ofthe road so I understand some ofthe 
commissioners consider this area pristine. If you've ran for office in the past 2, 3, 
4 cycles most people are concerned about economic development and jobs. I 
don't think it's feasible to have a main artery like this and not allow businesses on 
it so, so just wanted to give the mostly, this little exercise just wanted to give the 
commissioners a heads up of exactly what is 3 112 miles south there on the same 
side of the road there are 24 businesses, so just keep that in mind when we are 
making this, considering this. Thank you. 

Mr. Moore: Mr. Buckson, back to your question we are willing to deed restrict 
and subdivide that 2.36 acres which is the pipe stem; deed restricted from using as 
access from the remaining property. What that would mean is we would 
subdivide it off, it would become a separate piece, it would stay AC and we'd 
deed restrict it as part of that function and it does not then get used for access. 

The remaining acreage, 22.18 would then be usable if it was able to get access, 
which would be our issue and our problem. 

Mr. Buckson: Mr. Pepper, does that effectively address the concern that I have? 
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Mr. W. Pepper: Yes. 

Mr. Buckson: I am trying to get a grasp of the 20, what did you say? 21? 

Mr. Moore: It' s 22.18 so basically it's that, that exhibit would be our subdivision 
plan that we would effect. 

Mr. Buckson: Okay, so ... 

Mr. Moore: 2.35 acres would be remaining AC; it would become a separate 
parcel it could then be sold off to the neighbors or to somebody else for 
residential use or a farm, which it's not a good farm. The acreage in the front 
which would be that less the pipe stem, would then be the consideration for 
development whatever that might be. 

Mr. Buckson: The remaining existing blue line? 

Mr. Moore: Correct. 

Mr. Buckson: Versus what the County proposed which was the, an 18 acre 
subdivision. Can I see what that looks like? 

Mr. Moore: What that would do, Commissioner Sweeney, would be basically 
most of those folks that stood in opposition would then not be able to see this 
property because it would be separated by that large amount of woods. 

Mr. Buckson: The road, the parcel there, the rectangular parcel is currently zoned 
AC correct? 

Mr. Moore: Correct. 

Mr. Buckson: You indicated potential to contact the land owner, purchase the 
land and try to attempt to gain access there through an entrance? 

Mr. Moore: I'm just saying we're leaving that option open. The discussions 
would continue with the Meding's to proceed to some form of an agreement. If 
that doesn't happen then there's not significant development that occurs then time 
will pass until something happens to allow it. Which I think answers many of the 
questions that I'm hearing tonight. 

Mr. Buckson: So, one of the reasons that I entertained, even entertained the 
thought of a rezoning is similar to what Mr. Pepper stated, similar to what you 
stated earlier which is the State has invested a significant amount of money in the 
area regarding the overpass in fact from south North Bowers all the way down to 
Thompsonville Road. I think Commissioner Sweeney correctly stated and I stated 
beforehand that we need to address this, we need to address this to our 
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Comprehensive Plan what we want this to continue to look like if anything. 
Maybe leave it alone. So that's why I am entertaining this conversation. See, 
what I envision though is that reaches the infrastructure that currently would be, 
it would extend to, through the overpass, which I don't see it up there but I have 
an idea where it ends. See the access road would go directly from the overpass 
either into the Sports Complex or into this new Service Center however you want 
to call it. Let me ask you one other question. This is a concern that I just learned 
about. One of the things that I thought was a positive is, because it was expressed 
to me that the sewer district in that area is very costly, upwards of$1,100.00 a 
year and that the potential to develop this property and add it to the debt service 
would dramatically impact the debt service cost, would lower it significantly. It's 
not correct is what I'm being told now. Because of the law that the County 
currently has we can extend east of Route 1 which is what we did here but only 
for remediation projects, so this project would be excluded from any district that 
currently exists there. Ms. Keifer, did I express that correctly? Mr. Pepper, do 
you agree with that? 

Ms. Keifer: I believe you express what the code calls for, yes. 

Mr. W. Pepper: I agree. 

Mr. Buckson: Are you aware of that? 

Mr. Moore: There would have to be due process given to this applicant to pursue 
sewer in this area, it is adjacent in this area and that's not a guarantee. 

Mr. Buckson: They're aware, the applicant's aware ofthat whole situation? 

Mr. Moore: Yes. 

Mr. Buckson: I'm good right now. 

Mr. Angel: I have a few comments and a question for our lawyer, Mr. Pepper. If 
we are going to be looking at changing something now, with the way things are 
being done changing in the middle of the stream with the process, does that open 
us up to a law suit? 

Mr. W. Pepper: I'm not sure I understand your question. 

Mr. Angel: Well, if we're going to be looking at changing the rules, like hearing 
to slow the process down to look at things right now if we were to do that, would 
it open us up to a law suit? 

Mr. W. Pepper: That's not what I'm hearing. I'm hearing it as a consideration to 
be undertaken as we ramp up toward adopting the 2018 Comp Plan. 
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Mr. Angel: I heard the Camp Plan. I'm talking about, well based on what we 
talked a little about last week and about slowing down, looking at a process, 
putting a committee together to look at this differently if this doesn't pass tonight 
or whatever, if we change those rules based on that would it open us up to a law 
suit is all I'm asking. 

Mr. W. Pepper: I'm not sure that's what the idea was. I wasn't here last week. I 
read the minutes but I'm not aware that the discussion extended beyond having 
this examined as part of run up to the Camp Plan. 

Mr. Angel: Okay, the question I have is can a motion be made to approve if Del
Dot allows entrance? 

Mr. W. Pepper: That would be, you typically don't condition re-zonings like that. 

Mr. Angel: I'm just asking that's why I want, this is all new to me, too so I've got 
to ask the questions. Okay, Mr. Pepper brought up about how many businesses 
are down on the east side. Well, I also did that ride, too and there's a lot of 
businesses; there's cars, there's a boutique, there's a service stations, there's a 
propane, there's a lawn service, dog grooming, RV sales and services. There's a 
lot on the east side on that, businesses. And they don't have sewer. But 
infrastructure is in place up at the north end. Also, Mr. Sweeney had everybody 
stand up. When we started this process of putting a Sports Complex in place we 
said there would be economic boom in this area. We promised that there would 
be motels, hotels, restaurants, whatever you want to say coming to this area. Does 
everybody remember us saying that? Please stand on that. Okay, thank you. 
Also, when the Sports Complex was being brought forth we, as Levy Court saw 
the bigger picture of how that area was going to change and it has. Some people 
only saw the little PIP, the picture-in-the-picture in the comer. And some of those 
people are still seeing that little PIP in the comer. We've got to look at the bigger 
picture and that bigger picture is going to change. Time changes everything and 
we have to make changes as we go along. It ' s contiguous with the infrastructure 
in that area and as I said promises, I tell people that businesses were going to 
come, there will be restaurants and hotels and because of that Sports Complex and 
I said that the theme was, "Build it and they will come," and they have. I talked 
to Wendie V estfall who is our tourism director who, I am appointed to that board 
as a tourism person, and I will tell you that we need more hotels that was one of 
our discussions. Also, there's been three events at that site. July was the biggest 
support for hotels, motels here at 71% so that's a lot, that's a big increase. And 
that's only three events. And we're only talking about, we haven't talked about 
Firefly, we haven't talked about races or anything else, Amish Bike Tour, 
whatever else that comes to Dover. I feel that if we don't pass this we need to 
take a look at economic development in our County. We've been trying to get an 
air park here it's also east ofRoute 1 which would bring a lot of people here, in 
and out. So if we're not going to look at doing things the right way we need to go 
back and change everything and I don't think that's the right thing to do either. 
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And finally, the State's in a quandary of money. RTT money, money that's 
generated from sales of buildings and some land is going to help the State whether 
you like it or not it will help them. There's a line of things that take place that we 
need to look at closely too and I just feel that based on what I've said and what 
I've seen, and it is hard to look at both sides when you have an opposition and a 
positive but the positive outweighs a lot of the opposition, especially if it's done 
right. I think Mr. Moore and his group are trying to do it right and that's my 
belief. I just want to go on the record saying that. 

Mr. Banta: Mr. Angel I'd like to respond to your comments, all very well stated. 
I certainly appreciate that. You made one mistake. You started and you talked 
about a hotel. We're not talking about a hotel tonight we're talking about rezoning 
a piece of land from AC/AR to BG, that's what we're talking about. We're not 
talking about hotels, or whether the occupancy of Dover Downs is 48% or 77%. 
The hotel in Milford, occupancy rate may be 85%, it may be 47% maybe check 
with Wen die V estfall and see what the occupancy rates are but we're not here 
talking about hotels, we're talking about rezoning a piece of property from 
AC/ AR to BG the most vulnerable situation you could ever have with 119 things 
that could go there. We do not have contract zoning in Kent County, we don't 
have that. We can't say this is what you have to do. I trust Mr. Murphy; we've 
been friends for at least 5-7 years now. He and his wife are very pleasant people 
to deal with, I appreciate the calls and people need to know that. But our 
responsibility is to do what's appropriate for the entire County and what you're 
saying is we're doing this for a hotel and we're not doing it for a hotel we're doing 
it as a major rezoning. I just want to get that clear. Do you understand that? 

Mr. Angel: I want to make one thing clear. 

Mr. Banta: Do you understand that? 

Mr. Angel: I want to make one thing clear. 

Mr. Banta: But do you understand that? 

Mr. Angel: Is a hotel in there; is that one of the 119 ... ? 

Mr. Banta: The rezoning is for the hotel, that's what you're saying. 

Mr. Angel: I asked if it's in there. 

Mr. Banta: In where? 

Mr. Angel: In the 119 items. 

Mr. Banta: It is. 
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Mr. Angel: Okay. Then I'm not wrong, I'm not mistaken because I've been 
talking, too to people that would like to build in that area, so don't say I'm 
mistaken when I know what I'm talking about, too. 

Mr. Banta: You were simply warranted that that's what was going to be there. 

Mr. Angel: I just made a statement based on hotels. 

Mr. Banta: That promises were made. 

Mr. Angel: I said, yes, we did make some promises back when the Sports 
Complex was being built what could be going in that area and that was said. 

Mr. Banta: Any other commissioner comments? 

Mr. Buckson: I have one comment. It's a big difference between taking about 
something and promising something. Eyeball me. I didn't make any promises at 
all. Copy that? 

Mr. Angel: I didn't say you did. 

Mr. Buckson: Well that's what you said to that group and that's not what I said to 
you or anybody else. All right, enough said. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you Mr. Buckson. 

Mr. Sweeney: I can tell you that I've been involved in this process since Cindy 
Small came to us and there were never any promises that we were going to allow 
new hotels and new construction and new commercial businesses in the area. 
What we said, what this would bring economic development more into the 
economy which means more people would come and stay in our hotels, they 
would spend money in our stores, they would buy gas at our gas stations, not that 
we were going to allow new hotels. First of all, no promises like that were made. 
As far as slowing the process down, Mr. Angel you bring it up as if I'm 
recommending to do something with Mr. Murphy's application that would be 
inappropriate. I think this board that's sitting at this Dias right now needs to stop 
and look at what the inclusion ofDE Turf is going to do to our County and we're 
doing that, we're doing that. And if you're aware of more hotels or more 
businesses that are coming to that area then you, more than anybody else should 
be saying whoa, whoa, whoa wait a minute, let's slow it down and make sure that 
we address as a group and through our Comprehensive Plan how to bring this 
development in, bring this new economic boon in at the right pace so that we 
don't end up with a 2006 disaster like we did with all the new construction and 
developments. We don't want that, we don't want this, the new construction of 
commercial businesses to overburden Route 1 because we already know that most 
of those businesses that you listed are complaining every Saturday morning when 
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they have to shut down the crossovers and people can't get into their businesses 
on Saturday mornings. So Del-Dot's going to have to address that soon and 
anyway. And you're right this isn't about hotels, President Banta. But I did a real 
cursory check, which you can go on-line to pinpoint in to tell me how many hotels 
and how many rooms are available within a certain amount of area. Within 15 
miles of DE Turf there are 1290 hotel rooms and if we are only hitting 71% 
during the three big events that they've had that means there still 400 or so hotel 
rooms that are available in those 1290, that's just averages. So we're not hitting 
the maximum to where we have to consider putting in all new hotels, all big 
hotels in order to address the issue. Not yet, but I'm positive that Ms. Keifer and 
her group and the Comprehensive Plan group is going to address this. That's what 
we need to wait for. That's my position. 

Mr. Angel: Mr. President I'd like to respond please. Mr. Sweeney, it wasn't just 
this meeting where I said slow down, it was also the last meeting and in between 
where discussions were taking place about possible slowing it down so it wasn't 
just based on what you said, there's other comments being made to. Okay, just to 
make sure everybody's on the right page. 

Mr. Banta: Okay, any other commissioner comments? Thank you. I'm not sure 
exactly where we are at this point, Mr. Buckson, but hang on a minute Bob, just 
one second. Mr. Buckson, Public Hearing now, are you ready to go? 

Robert Murphy, 3338 Bay Road, Milford, DE: Eric, I stood with you at Milford 
when Milford was yellow and you stood your ground, you do it all the time. I 
commend you. I commend you for your father who said Dover needed Dover 
Downs and everybody said no, and he got it done. And now another Buckson 
brought another great thing to Kent County, thank you. I promise I wasn't going 
to talk; but truth is truth, right is right, wrong is wrong. President Banta, thank 
you for the phone calls, thank you for your honesty. Commissioner Pepper, 
Commissioner Angel, Commissioner Sweeney thank you, thank you for giving 
me shelter in your tent and witnessing Plan B. Commissioner Howell, 
Commissioner Hosfelt welcome to the gang. Questions were asked tonight, how 
many people are here on behalf of this please stand. They did. The other 
question was asked, how many people oppose, please stand. They did. The 
question was then asked of the people that were for the application how many 
people could see this property, please if you can't sit down. That very same 
question, commissioners, was asked of the opposition and this is the only point 
that I'm going to make tonight. When I put my hand on this Bible and I look you 
in the eye and I promise to tell you the whole truth, the whole truth of the matter 
is when you asked the opposition if they could see my property or if they could 
not see my property, however the question was poised to them to please sit down 
they all stood. There's my property, 50 acres of woods, commissioners I won't 
mention who I talked with, you know of all the people that are in here from 
Milford Neck Road cannot look through 50 acres of woods to see my property. 
So, I don't think it's fair if someone from Felton or Frederica is in here on my 
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behalf that they can't voice their opinion that they're on behalf of this thing just 
because that they can't see this particular location when in truth of the matter the 
opposition can't see my property either. Cannot see it, I do not control that 
woods, that 50 acres of woods belongs to a family in Wilmington that will remain 
in their family for years. I've known them for 30 years. I have no control; that 
woods is not even part of the zoning in question tonight. So the two points of the 
question that were brought up in the original hearing on June 27th was traffic on 
the back road that the people did not want and I said that night, I agree with them, 
that little country road cannot handle the volume of traffic that they want. Eric, 
we discussed that, I agreed. The point of the matter was made, Bob, do away with 
that finger, we'll zone the front. Make the people in the back know that there's not 
going to be any more added traffic on that back road. I have talked to one of my 
neighbors who's interested in getting that property but again Eric, as you stated 
words are cheap, but I havetalked to one of my neighbors already who really 
wants that piece of property because he wants to get off of Route 1. So only if we 
can do something with ours and he gets off Route 1, my wife and I have made 
agreements with this gentleman that we've known for over 30 years, who's already 
signed our petition that we would be willing to talk to him about having that 
finger. I don't need that finger if we've already got an agreement with the 
Meding's who we've sat down with and worked out a congenial partnership 
arrangement with an easement between the two properties with a direct line to the 
service road which would be a service road that our people would build straight to 
the Complex. Take all the traffic off the back road; I'm telling you that's what we 
want to do. We didn't know until the June 27th meeting that that was even a 
possibility and that, gentlemen is my word. Since the meeting on June 27th a lot 
has happened. We've tried to acknowledge what you wanted to do, Eric. We've 
taken out the finger and the other question about when the opposition said that we 
don't want to see anything and I don't want to sit in my hot tub and see a Wawa 
sign, gentlemen you can't see through 50 acres of woods in the winter time with 
no leaves on the trees so how are you going to see my property or see anything 
that's going to be developed on that property? I think that needs to be duly noted. 
I respectfully ask you to ask me any questions you have of me and I promise you I 
will give you a straight, truthful answer and I also thank you for bearing with me 
one more time up here. Any questions from you? 

Mr. Banta: Mr. Murphy, Bob, you had mentioned once in your conversation 
tonight and I think it was mentioned by Greg Moore as well, that there's some 
kind of a Memorandum of Understanding. 

Mr. Murphy: That's correct. 

Mr. Banta: And that's been certified and it's documented and ready to go, right? 

Mr. Murphy: The document is being reviewed right now, ifl might say, 
between . . . 
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Mr. Banta: The question was ... 

Mr. Murphy: It's not signed. 

Mr. Banta: Has it been executed? It's not been executed, right? 

Mr. Murphy: No. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you. 

Mr. Murphy: Any further questions? Eric? 

Mr. Buckson: I appreciate your testimony Mr. Murphy. One of the things that I 
look to do is the weight of testimony given by folks that live in that area is 
exceptionally valuable. I recognize also that in my packet there are numerous 
names from individuals who may or may not be here that have actually signed a 
document in support of your application who in fact it appears based on the 
addresses live in that area. So, for me it really does come down to what can I do 
and what makes the most sense to this property. As it's listed up there, excluding 
the red, is that a rezoning that you can, you know that's one that Staff proposed, is 
that one that you could live with? 

Mr. Murphy: If I can ask you to look at the other pipe stem, that I would give you 
my word that is exactly what we want to do, eliminate the stem as Greg said the 
terminology for rezoning it or subdividing it or whatever, however that makes it 
that the Court would feel that that is a doable process and something that could be 
written in stone, absolutely. 

Mr. Buckson: Regrettably, the issue I have continues to be the rectangular section 
of that property that could bare an entrance; and for me that's just not something 
that I can look at in good faith and say it meets the bar. That's just me talking. 
I'm not saying the other commissioners are going to support anything. It's just me 
looking at this, that rectangular property up there, that section there is the concern. 
Utilizing Staff recommendation that eliminates that as an option at this time and 
that's a plus. 

Mr. Murphy: I don't understand. 

Mr. Buckson: Back to the ... 

Mr. Murphy: (to Mr. Moore: Do you want to take that? I don' t understand.) 

Mr. Buckson: Right there. Okay, so that section there, that is not the 18 acres, 
Staff? Or that is, yes, so, utilizing that application there as 18 acres for approval 
would effectively eliminate the rectangular section that you currently do not own 
but indicated you potentially could own. 
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Mr. Moore: You're speaking about where the arrow is? 

Mr. Buckson: Right now, yes. See this, so if we effectively deed restrict the 
remaining parcel of land there to include that in its entirety? 

Mr. Moore: My testimony, my offer was to deed restrict the pipe stem that is over 
toward Pritchett so that there wouldn't be a road with commercial traffic headed to 
Pritchett. The Staff drawing actually shows property that folks in the back there 
can't even see and that square or that odd shaped piece to the south on the back 
side? 

Mr. Buckson: Will be willy nilly. Yeah, I'm not worried about that little square 
piece if you want to call it, I'm worried about restricting an entrance there in 
that rectangular piece. 

Mr. Moore: You're saying you want restricted an entrance across that piece of 
property that runs from Murphy pipe stem over to Milford Neck? Is that what 
you're saying? 

Mr. Buckson: With the remaining property that's contiguous, the property 
adjacent to it, you guys can decide what it is that you have to do. 

Mr. Moore: Ifthat 'lines drawn straight across there and you don't want a road 
there I'm fine with that. 

Mr. Buckson: That's the indication that original arrow I guess indicated that you 
might put a driveway there, correct? And that was a .. . 

Mr. Moore: I was leaving that option open. 

Mr. Buckson: Right, and that's a concern of mine so by eliminating ... 

Mr. Moore: That pipe stem was then drawn from where it is now, which is the 
colored line right straight across I would be fine with my earlier testimony 
saying that we would subdivide, deed restrict. 

Don Blakey, I live between Woodside and Camden Road, a general location: I 
am here in support of LC 17-13 for a number of reasons. Let me sort of give you 
the litany that I have sort of jotted down as you have been talking. The Levy 
Court that Commissioner Peterman sat on with President Banta and 
Commissioner Pepper created something that we didn't expect to happen but it 
has and that is to have cleared up the problems of the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
of the 1990s. Everyone in here would have been complaining about it. You don't 
have those problems, now you have opportunity. And I'm here in support of the 
opportunity that would be available to a constituent of yours on behalf of all of 
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the citizens of the County, Kent County and the State of Delaware who will be 
able to benefit from a rezoning like this. And others will occur because you have 
as a Levy Court created a Sports Complex that is going to draw people. It already 
has. I've been down there several times and I've talked to a number of people 
there about the facility which they love, but their biggest complaint is having to 
travel all the way back to Dover or into Sussex County to find some place to 
lodge and to shop. Yes, the County is changing; I think the statement has been 
made earlier. It's changing; it is going to continue to change. And I applaud you 
for your scrutiny and your deliberance trying to make sure that it's done right but I 
think that the rezoning of this particular piece of property is going to make a 
contribution to the overall benefit of the County as we move forward. So I am 
here in support of LC 17-13. Any questions? 

Mr. Banta: Mr. Blakey, certainly appreciate you being here. As a former 
commissioner you did an outstanding job in representing the people ofKent 
County in a very respectful manner. If you were sitting up here tonight I believe 
you would look at this very closely and make an appropriate determination and I 
think from your previous record on Levy Court which was outstanding, you did a 
super job, I think you would do what you have done on occasions in the past 
maybe we just need to slow down, think this through, still move forward. I don't 
see a reason once that's done to not move in a more positive direction but I think 
we need to stop rushing into this situation and spot zone an area with such a 
magnitude that it's being presented and with no guarantees and there's still a 
couple of things that are missing. There was a document that was mentioned that 
has yet to be notarized and signed. So I think we need to sort of slow down, catch 
our breath and see how this unfolds. Thank you. 

Mr. Blakey: Thank you, Mr. Banta. 

Mr. Banta: Yes sir, good to see you. 

Mr. Blakey: Good to see you. 

Brandy Germick, 451 OB New Jersey Drive, Dover, DE: I've known the 
Murphy's for going on 10 years. I dated their son for seven. I lived in their 
house for four years. Been to numerous parties there, had the neighbors over for 
picnics and everything. I used to live on 20 Greenhouse Road, it's on Milford 
Neck. I used to live on 10 Whispering Oak Lane also in Milford Neck. You 
cannot see their property. I looked at all the faces of everyone opposing it and 
from their house I cannot see theirs because of the trees. I don't see how any of 
them can sit there and say that they can see their property when even if you look 
up there, that little tiny part? They might drive by it, but you can't see it. There 
is a lot of woods back there and it irritates me and upsets me that these people 
would sit there and say that they can see that property. I don't understand how 
they could. If you have ever driven down Milford Neck Road it's twisty, it's 
curvy, there's maybe, when you go around that bend, there's what? Three houses 
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down Milford Neck Road. There's another four houses along Pritchett Road and 
all they can see is those trees. Unless you live on the highway you cannot 
actually see the front part of that property. I lived there for many years. I've used 
those back roads to get around the beach traffic, they actually do get a lot of 
travel; a lot of locals use it to get around it. If you go up the highway a little bit 
and you tum at Meding and Son you take Bowman Road all the way into Milford. 
Those roads are traveled a lot by the locals and they all know it. You see people 
during the summer using those roads all the time. But regardless, they stood up 
and they continued to stand saying that they could see that property when if you 
actually looked up their address, and you looked at the street view on Google you 
could see nothing but trees. You can't even see their house. And it's a nice well
sized house. You guys have any questions? 

***Please note the following person had an Artificial Larynx Speech Aid 

Joseph Hurd, 799 Torbert Road, Milford DE: I hope you can understand me. I 
don't know none of you people; I know some of those and know one or two of 
these. When you guys put in the overpass off of Thompsonville Road that was 
the best thing you could ever done. When that lady and that gentleman lost their 
lives turning in to Frederica right up the road here, along with this overpass, the 
new housing developments and everything, I know you've got a big decision, I 
understand this. I understand where Bob's coming from. I understand where 
these ladies and gentlemen are coming from. But the object of it is it's either this 
week, next week, next year, five years from now. You're not going to stop it 
because you're going to see the proceeds that's going to come to Kent County; 
you're going to see the proceeds that's going to come into Sussex County. I've 
lived in Sussex, I've lived in Kent. So, what your main decision is, is who's right 
and who's wrong. There's no right and wrong here there's just being honest. I 
have met you a few years ago. It's been quite a while but Jack Peterman, Jack 
Peterman was my best friend. So, you guys have been sitting here pushing it 
around, they've been pushing it around you're not going to end up, that's what 
going to happen. My wife delivers mail; my wife knows about 99.9% of you 
people. She's been to Dover, she's been to Milford, she's been to Lincoln, she's 
been all over the place delivering mail; she knows what you can and you can't see. 
I hunt Bob Murphy's land; I know what you can and what you cannot see. But 
when you guys put these overpasses in, for people like me ***unintelligible***. 
If you put a hotel in I really don't give a crap because I'm not going to stay 
there. If you put that, they've got a seafood place right up on the dual highway I 
don't go because I can't afford them. Alright, I stay home and do what I got to 
do. But I will tell you all this, that gentleman right there is no liar. So you 
can say whatever you want. You don't want to mess with me because I'm not 
that gentleman, I don't back down. You remember me. I live in the net. Thank 
you all. Have a good evening. I'm going home. 

Brad Eaby, 233 Pebble Valley Drive, Dover, DE: Aren't you going to say he 
doesn't have to swear me? Alright gentlemen it's great to see you all tonight and I 
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promise not to be repetitious, I have all new things to talk about, Brooks. So, I'm 
going to talk about six things and I promise not to take more than two minutes on 
each one. The first thing I want to talk about is economic development and about 
10 years ago when the Sports Complex was a twinkle in Cindy Smalls' eye and 
Linda Parkowski, Levy Court really took to it and understood the impact it could 
have for Kent County. It's then for the next 8 or 9 years of work, really 
relentlessly through a lot of hurdles, ups and downs; project almost died a 
number of times, but you guys all persevered. You saw the opportunity for the 
County and you made it happen and I just congratulate you all for that and I think 
it was a great decision. So that was the first point. Oh, and one more point on the 
frrst point and as we recall when we were looking at all this the economic 
development projection was $18 million and the most recent one was recently 
revised to how well it's doing it was up to $25 million annual, you know 
economic impact to the County. So hindsight is good, you guys did a great job. 
So the second thing I want to talk about is that we don't have a monopoly and so 
other people have seen our success and I'm just going to give you just two quick 
examples. We have the Delaware Sports Complex up in Middletown, they want 
to do a similar project, much bigger and that project is currently in Chapter 11 
Bankruptcy. They've hit some hard spots. Chapter 11 is where you want to 
reorganize, come out of the bankruptcy and do your project. So they're working 
hard; I don't think they're going to go away. They're on life support like we were 
a few times but they understand the economic development it can have for their 
County and the things they often talk about is hey, if we build it here look at all 
the infrastructure we have here in Middletown; hotels, restaurants right nearby. 
So that's some competition that we need to stay, that I think that Kent County 
would like to stay ahead of. The other one is, it was just in the paper today, but 
it's been in the paper previously so that's the Sussex Sports Center, Inc. by Joe 
Schell. That's about 54 acres that he wants to contribute down in Georgetown 
near intersection of Route 9 and Sandown Road and it's about eight rectangular 
fields like they have at the Sports Complex but they'll be grass. In his letter he 
talks about the Delaware Turf and its economic impact of $18 million plus and 
how they want to capture some of that and they want to move forward and do 
some more things and they talk about the infrastructure they have right off 113 in 
Georgetown that will really make people want to go there. So that was the 
second point, we don't have a monopoly and we need to stay ahead of the 
competition. The third point is the Sports Complex itself. As you know when the 
project was begun many years ago you know the State invested about $3 million, 
the County you know provided land worth maybe about $1 million and then 
there's bond financing about $20 million that the Sports Complex has to pay back. 
The County has some elective obligation in that but they're not on the hook and 
that was something you all worked very hard at to make sure that the taxpayers 
were protected in the event that there's a potential default on repayment of the $20 
million bond. So there's a lot invested in the project and I understand you all want 
to make sure it moves forward; you have a very difficult decision. I'm very happy 
to be on this end of the podium and not on your end tonight but I certainly 
enjoyed all my years that I served with you up there. So the next point I want to 
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discuss is what I'll call the floodgate argument, a very valid point. If we rezone 
this property, what's going to happen to Route 1 and that area? That's a very valid 
point. So the one thing I just want to talk about, when I was on the Dover Kent 
County MPO for 10 years while I was a County commissioner the one thing I 
learned about was the Corridor Capacity Preservation Program. State Law that 
says if you're going to develop on Route 1 you will not get a full entrance off of 
Route 1, you will not get an "in" and an "out." You'll get an "in" typically if it 
can be done safely, because it is safer to decelerate and go into a property than it 
is to go onto a high capacity or high speed highway and accelerate. So you might 
get the right in but you're not going to get a right out. So typically the only way a 
property could have a commercial site along Route 1 that's preserved by the 
Corridor Capacity Program is if it had secondary access and this property has a 
couple of different secondary accesses. It has an existing one which we've talked 
about tonight, the finger which would allow it to develop on Route 1 perhaps get a 
right in but in order to have a commercial site and a commercial exit it has to have 
a secondary access. So if you look to the, just for example the property 
immediately to the right of the picture that's up there that is adjacent to 
Mr. Murphy's property to the south it could have a potential right in, but it 
couldn't get a commercial entrance because they don't have a secondary access, so 
it's not like it's going to open the floodgate to other properties unless they have 
that secondary access. So that limits the pool of applicants that might be able to 
come in and ask for a rezoning and get it. That was the other point I wanted to 
make. The next part I wanted to talk about was the deed restriction that was 
mentioned and if I understood what the applicant said if, and I know there was 
two different variations of the red portion up there one was basically, what would 
that be, east, yes, it would allow access onto that rectangular piece, but in any 
event, if that parcel whether it's 2.35 acres or the larger parcel which was 7 or 8, if 
it was deed restricted that means that the owner of that land is going to file a 
document in Court with the Recorder of Deeds, pay the Recorder of Deeds fee 
and it'll say we're not going to, we agree, we promise and it runs with the land if 
it's worded that way which it should be we promise to never seek access through 
that site. So if that is done it would prevent the access from going on to that road, 
that's the point I want to make. The last point is, so I guess I'm here tonight on 
behalf of, as a taxpayer and it's a big investment, you guys made a wise 
investment. I think it's something when we approved the Sports Complex we 
certainly thought there would be development around to support it, I think it's 
necessary, I don't think it can really survive long term with competition without 
having amenities near it. So I think it's a very had decision and I think it's 
important to have those amenities and so I would urge you to really consider 
supporting the Sports Complex in that manner. 

Mr. Banta: Mr. Eaby it's good to see you again. Mr. Sweeney has a question as 
well. I have three for you. I think you cleared that up in the very end but I didn't 
hear it distinctly. You're not here representing the Department of Transportation? 

Mr. Eaby: I am not, sir. 
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Mr. Banta: You are an Attorney at Law. 

Mr. Eaby: I am. 

Mr. Banta: Right and you want to support the rezoning of this parcel ofland to 
BG, is that correct? 

Mr. Eaby: Correct. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: First of all, don't minimize your contribution to DE Turf because 
you sat here during all the discussions, so don't minimize that. 

Mr. Eaby: We had a good time. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yeah. So, one ofthe areas in the United States that DE Turf 
continually is compared to is Overland Park in Kansas. I have a daughter that 
lives in Wichita that has sons who have played at Overland Park and I specifically 
asked her about accommodations around Overland Park. If you look at Overland 
Park it is surrounded by development, not commercial development, it's 
surrounded by residential development and they had to stay at a hotel that was, 
and I checked, she told me the hotel was 15.8 miles away from Overland Park 
where a lot of the teams that were there for a tournament were staying in the same 
area. And what she said, which has stuck with me, you don't mind staying that far 
away when you know you are playing at that Park because it is such a fantastic 
place to play. I feel the same way about DE Turf. So, yes I agree with you 
economic development, economic construction is coming to this area, absolutely 
there is no doubt in my mind its coming. Whether it's Mr. Murphy's property, 
Mr. Meding's property or any of the other properties that are currently zoned AC 
that could possibly have the ability to take advantage of Del-Dot's construction 
and side roads or whatever they're planning down there over the next 10 years. 
My concern is that if we start saying, okay, we approve Mr. Murphy's rezoning, 
we approve Mr. Meding's and we piecemeal this in at some point we're going to 
have to say, okay, we're done, no more. That person will then have the ability to 
sue us and say, no, you approved all these others, I fit the same bill you've got to 
approve mine. And then we're in an area we don't want to be in. That's why we 
need that Comp Plan to be completed. That Comp Plan's only a year away. 
Mr. Moore testified that it could be years before this property's actually developed 
so that's why my suggestion was to let the Comp Plan play out, take into account 
the DE Turf and what it means to the County and then we start looking at these 
properties to move forward. Thank you for your contribution, I just want to get 
that out there. You keep saying us but you had just as much to do with it as 
anybody sitting up here. 
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Mr. Eaby: If I could just quickly respond. I think with the two parcels that are 
there you do have a fairly strong legal basis to say, okay, yeah, we approve those 
because they have secondary access you don't have secondary access off Route 1. 
So, that would be a very enforceable argument. I appreciate the predicament. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you Mr. Eaby, I appreciate your service to the County. 

Mr. Eaby: Thank you. 

IN OPPOSITION 

Robert Kitts, 112 Market Street, Frederica, DE: Is there any chance that you a 
have graphic that shows a bigger picture that would show the zonings of the 
surrounding area? If not the zonings than at least the maybe the Del-Dot ramp all 
the way to, including where the Frederica entrance, basically where Frederica 
Road joins onto Route 1. I'm basically here kind of representing the redheaded 
step Town of Frederica. I am not a current councilman but I'm a former 
councilman and one of the founding of their Planning and Zoning Commission so 
I do have some familiarity with this. And I was somebody who helped put 
together their first planning documents and Comprehensive Plan for the Town of 
Frederica, the first one in forever. So, I'm a big fan of Comprehensive Plans even 
though they are a pain in the ... Anyhow, you have a pretty good thing here, is red 
commercial? And purple is? 

Ms. Keifer: Industrial. 

Mr. Kitts: On that map the subject site is Agricultural but it's white because it's 
the subject site but it would be green currently? Okay. Meding Seafood, that's 
purple, is that what that is, is that what I'm looking at when I look at that? 

Ms. Keifer: No. 

Mr. Kitts: Okay, that's farther up the road. Okay. I don't see a zoning for DE 
Turf, is that the long purple thing at the top there? 

Ms. Keifer: No, Delaware Turf is actually zoned AC. 

Mr. Kitt: Okay. I didn't know you could grow bleachers and parking lots so that's 
pretty neat. I think that the Comprehensive Plan will probably adjust that, is that, 
I'm just curious. 

Ms. Keifer: The use itself is permitted as a conditional use in the AC Zoning 
District, so it was approved by the Zoning Ordinance. 
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Mr. Kitt: Oh, okay. Oh, that's right, because if you build it, they will come. The, 
there's an interesting piece of red, there ' s a red slice of pie right under the word 
Exhibit, of Exhibit A, that's what I'm here for. That's why I'm in favor of 
Mr. Murphy getting, I'm in favor of Mr. Murphy getting commercial zoning BG 
in 2018. And I'm not in favor of him getting it through this ordinance but I would 
like to recommend to the Levy Court that if they could vote to turn it down with a 
recommendation if possible, I don't know how these things work because this is 
the first Levy Court meeting I've ever attended, but if they could have a way to 
turn it down with a letter of recommendation to the Comprehensive Plan 
Committee to expedite because of his application for BG, a letter of 
recommendation to expedite to a commercial zoning of some sort, be it BG as 
that's apparently the only one you've got. So 2018 when the comprehensive plan 
comes out the piece of property he's recommending commercial for, absolutely 
should be commercial in my opinion, it's a good location for it. The access has to 
be done better and that's, apparently they've been working on it already. Don't 
want it to come out through that little bitty part of Milford Neck, they already 
know that. So it sounds like the people who are working to get something put on 
Mr. Murphy's property, and I don't know if we're talking chicken here now 
because I know Royal Farms makes some really good chicken, but we wanted that 
Royal Farms up in that little tiny comer up there. We want it. Awwww, come 
on. So, give us a year to get a Chamber of Commerce together or something and 
go out and talk to people and get us our own dang gas station because we've 
worked with DNREC, we've worked with the State, we got rid of our only gas 
station, we've got nothing. The one across from the firehouse, too close to the 
river they said. We've got nothing. No Royal Farms, no Wawa, not even a Mom 
and Pop shop, gas station nothing. Yeah, we've got a good pizza parlor but they 
don't sell gas and it's really hard to get your car at 3:00 in the morning when 
you've run out to run on pizza. And I have tried. So, that little red comer, that 
little piece of pie is not a pizza pie, that is a good location and when we worked 
on the Comprehensive Plan back in 2006, 2007 as early as 2005 before we even 
knew about DE Turf the State was telling us there's going to be another overpass 
but we're going to build the north one first. But there's no place for a gas station 
up there, there was no place to rezone, there was a historic district because of 
Barrett's Chapel and there was, pretty much a graveyard up there, you can't build 
there, and there was already residential properties there, you can't build there. But 
the south, the south overpass, that's where you're going to need, that's where 
you're going to need a gas station, Shore Stop, Wawa, Royal Farms, Goose Creek, 
we don't care, not picky. But if you rezone this now any chance oftrying to get 
somebody to sign a deal for that piece of pie is going to go sign a deal, even if 
they can't build it until 2019 or 2020 because of infrastructure, road access, other 
problems, getting all the other things through you guys. That's ready to go and we 
can sell it. So please, please reward Frederica for doing something right for a 
change. They made a Comprehensive Plan and they worked with the other levels 
of government for a change, so reward them for that. Reward us for doing it 
right. And now it's your turn to do it right. I've heard some of you say, slow 
down and wait for the Comprehensive Plan, it's almost ready. I'll do what I can 
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do to help you with your Comprehensive Plan if I have to. I'm glad to volunteer. 
But stick to the Comprehensive Plans because I grew up, well I didn't grow up, I 
tried to grow up in South Jersey and that place is a mess, okay, they didn't do 
Comprehensive Plans in the '70s and '80s and you, they've got traffic circles and 
jug handled roads and all sorts of nightmares up there. South Jersey's a mess 
because they didn't stick to Comprehensive Plans and most of the time it was just 
a matter of waiting a few months till various levels of government work together 
cooperatively. Remember, I'm in favor, very much in favor of him getting 
commercial zoning and I don't want him to have to wait 12 months, but I know, I 
just overheard, disappointed to overhear that there's a 12 month waiting period 
after you put in an application but on the other hand, he can still sign contracts 
with people if you guys work with him and write letters of recommendation and 
things like that with him. He won't actually have the zoning in hand maybe for a 
year but it won't wipe him out and it will help out Frederica a lot and that's all I 
have to say. So, please remember Frederica, we're there. That's where people 
think DE Turf is anyway because it says so on the map kind of when they Google 
it. 

Mr. Sweeney: Ms. Keifer, the Comprehensive Plan does take into account input 
from the municipalities from the County, correct? 

Ms. Keifer: Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: So, Mr. Glanden and his counsel is working with the County on 
the comprehensive plan with the respect to their areas? 

Ms. Keifer: When we have draft ready to review we will happily share it. 

Mr. Sweeney: Thank you. So our comp plan and your experience with the Comp 
Plan should realize this, we don't recommend changes to individual properties in 
our Comp Plan; that still has to come from the applicant. And we don't want to, 
as Commissioner Angel suggested, we don't want to usurp the law for a specific 
person because then every time someone comes in here they're going to say, you 
did it for Mr. Murphy you have to do it for me or I'm going to sue you. So, just 
understand that we can follow the process and let the process play out and 
hopefully Mr. Glanden as Mayor of Frederica is working with our County to 
address your little triangle piece of property. 

Mr. Kitt: No, that one's ready to go, it's already zoned commercial, and it's on the 
map already. 

Alex Schmidt: 694 Milford Neck Road, Milford, DE: Let me start by saying that 
I can see this site. I can see it from my backyard every day and while it's true that 
I can't see the bulk of the site all that matters if a Wawa goes in, where do they 
put their sign? Not up by the front, in the middle of the site they put it at the end 
on the road, and that's what I'm going to see. So let me just make that clear. And 
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I think that's true for a lot of people that stood up. The applicant also mentioned 
at the June 21st hearing that only two issues were raised one being traffic and the 
other one I don't really recall what it was. I don't want to waste your time by 
going back through them but I do have my entire list of issues that I raised at that 
meeting and if there's any question about that feel free to review the testimony 
from that meeting. Mr. Banta, President Banta you mentioned that this is a 
zoning hearing and I think that's absolutely critical that we keep that in mind. As 
soon as this zoning is, rezoning is granted, if it's granted the horse is out ofthe 
bam. We don't have control over what goes on that site, there's so many 
allowable uses in the BG zone that anything practically can go there. There's not 
much control once that zoning is granted. We're not going to have another 
opportunity to come back and raise the issues that we're raising tonight so I'd like 
you to keep that in mind as we go forward here. The applicant stated at the 
planning and zoning hearing, that they had a vision of a Wawa and a hotel on this 
site. Now they did note that they didn't have any concrete interest but this was 
just their vision of what would be there. Vice President Pepper, Commissioner 
Angel when you drove down that stretch of Route 1 on the east side the two 
largest businesses that you saw there unless my memories wrong were probably 
the Shell Gas Station and the Chicken Man with a Dairy Queen and the hotel 
down by the church. Now the applicant's asking you to put two of the same 
businesses in there. How do you think those owners will feel about that? And I 
would ask if you talked to either of them and took their concerns into 
consideration. I can tell you that I wrote letters to all the business owners in that 
area and made them aware of what was going on here. The hotel owners did 
come to the commission meeting on the 21st and chose not to speak but they had 
a concern about they couldn't even make their payments; they were charging 
$59.00 a night and they couldn't fill their hotel. I don't know how that anybody's 
going to put a hotel just 2 miles closer and have much more success. So I think 
that before anything should happen there should at least be some concrete interest 
from some commercial entity that actually wants to come in here and build a 
business here. The optional access of, Mr. Conley and Ms. Keifer could you go 
back to the aerial map that had the two arrows on it and this also ties into 
something else that was mentioned about whether there's not a large pool of 
parcels in the area that could be rezoned to BG. So the applicant stated that 
they didn't see if that finger, as we're calling it on the back were to stay AC 
they didn't see that as being allowable to have an access through an AC area. But 
what they're asking you to do is to give them a shared use through one of these 
two other AC properties, so I'm not sure if what they're really saying is let's zone 
these commercial as well so then everything is commercial and we'll have our 
access through there or if they're going to argue one side of the coin for what 
benefits them on then on the other side ignore this, can I have an access through 
an AC area. So that's something to me that needs to be clarified. At the June 21st 
hearing the main issue was whether or not they could access off of Milford Neck 
Road. The applicant stated at the Planning and Zoning Commission Hearing that 
they had talked to the Secretary of Transportation who had stated that they could 
have right in access off of Route 1. They were asked to clarify that, it was my 
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understanding from the June 21st hearing as to whether they could get right in and 
right out. Now Mr. Eaby also spoke and he mentioned that right in' s would be 
granted if you could demonstrate safety and that you don't have a negative impact 
on the corridor capacity, that's part of the State Corridor Capacity Preservation 
Program. I noticed that the applicant didn't address that tonight and I would be 
curious to hear if a right in would even be allowed for them or if they're 
dependent solely on an access off of the local road. Just to mention again pool of 
potential applicants, when I look at this map right here I see at least three other 
parcels that could be zoned BG based on the argument that this applicant's using. 
The wooded parcel just offthe top ofthis screen same situation, they could beAG 
errr BC, or BG. The Meding's property, the rectangular property, there's 
properties on the other side of the highway that could all be BG based on the 
criteria that we're using. And that's what I really want to emphasize tonight, this 
concern that if we do this for one person what happens when we tell another 
person no. So, very quickly I'm going to summarize here. But these are all the 
issues that I see with this site and I ask all of you to think about them carefully 
and if there's any that you feel are not accurate please feel free to ask and I'll try to 
clarify. But if you're going to use this as the litmus test for this site think about 
who else could come in and ask for a rezoning based on these criteria. So first of 
all, there's other properties in the area that are closer to the DE Turf site that will 
have access on the ramps for the new South Frederica interchange. Those 
properties are the ones to the east or the west of the interchange a little further 
north of where we're looking at. So, there ' s better properties available. This 
property's not in the growth zone. This property's not supported by various State 
planning agencies. It's not compliant with the Comp Plan. The main access is off 
a local road and depending on what would end up happening with this finger it 
would be through a residential area. One thing that Commissioner Buckson had 
alliterated to the sewer service for this property is a residential sewer service and 
that's in the Staff comments, that they have residential sewer service it's not 
commercial sewer. So they keep bringing up infrastructure and saying we have 
infrastructure. Infrastructure is not designed for a commercial site so consider 
that. This has a residential sewer service. There are known impacts; depending 
again on what happens to that finger, there's known impacts to environmental 
areas. It requires code waivers and variances already as it's currently presented 
depending on what happens with that finger. I mentioned at the June 21st hearing 
that there's a 1 00' buffer on blue-line streams, riparian buffers as they have 
initially presented it all of those things will have to be waived by the code in order 
for this property to proceed. Think about all those things. What is the one 
argument that this owner has? Well he has two arguments; one is that there's 
something that he thinks is a growth driver in the area. A lot of people could 
make that argument. A new hotel gets built, oh that's a growth driver, a new 
interchange, oh that's a growth driver, a new business comes in, oh that's a growth 
driver. And then the other thing is that you saw the property for sale already, he 
wants to make money off of this, everybody wants that, I want that. If I were to 
come in next week and ask for you to rezone my property I could make all of 
these statements except I'm on a septic and not a residential sewer. Would you 
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grant me a rezoning on my property? Would you grant every other person that 
came in and made the statement oh, I'm not in the growth zone, I'm not supported 
by the Comp Plan, I don't have, I have impacts to environmental areas, I need 
code variances but I want commercial would you say, sure. Ask yourself that 
question because that's the door that gets opened if you grant this application. 
With that I'd like to say thank you. If you have any questions feel free to ask. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Thank you for your testimony. Can you tell us what impact DE Turf 
has had on your community to this point. Any questions feel free to ask. 

Mr. Schmidt: On our community? I want to make something clear I am not 
against DE Turf. I have two nieces who play travel soccer. I've gone to a lot of 
their games; they go to many of these types of stadiums and fields but as Mr. 
Sweeney mentioned a lot of them are in residential areas and the thing is that 
makes for a nice field. You don't want to play on a field that's got a line of cars 
around, that's got horns honking, that's got stuff pumping out of people's tailpipes 
and you're running around breathing heavy and you're smelling exhaust. Or 
you've got the Wawa across the street with the trucks idling. So I don't have any 
opposition to DE Turf. I support DE Turf on the whole. My concern is that 
where does this lead, this property that's several miles south of DE Turf and will 
have direct impact on the community where I live, where I raise my kids, where 
many other people live and have raised their kids. So I just want to make sure 
that's clear. I think DE Turf is a positive thing. I think unmanaged growth around 
DE Turf is the negative. 

Mr. Hosfelt: So you don't feel that the traffic involved with DE Turf has had an 
impact to your community, negative or positive? 

Mr. Schmidt: With DE Turf, specifically right now it's a pain because they've 
closed the crossovers. That's temporary until the overpass gets built. Were you at 
the meeting on the 21st? You were? Okay so I was involved in that project, I'm 
familiar with the headaches and the growing pains that go along with heavy 
highway work. Traffic wise I don't think DE Turf has had a negative impact on 
our area but that's because nothing has gone down that way. Once we start 
opening that area up then there's going to be a significant impact on people that 
live there. 

Mr. Hosfelt: With that being said, the testimony that we're hearing now is if we 
open up a hotel or we allow a hotel to go in there it's basically going to support 
DE Turf and their needs so ifwe're doing that, if DE Turfhas had no impact on 
you what impact would the hotel then have? Traffic? 

Mr. Schmidt: If the hotel were placed up closer to the overpass or on the other 
side of the overpass I would have no problem with that; that would have no 
impact on traffic or on the character of the area where I live. And I think those 
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are options that are easily supported by the commission, by the court because they 
make sense. This one doesn't make sense. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Okay, thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: Two points, first of all when I asked people to stand up and sit 
down if you couldn't see the property I was being metaphoric; I could have used 
can throw a stone, or can you hit a nine iron or a driver from your property onto 
this property. I was being metaphorical here, it wasn't actual can I see the 
physical property, so let's be clear about that. It had more to do with who's 
impacted and who was supporting Mr. Murphy in his efforts. The second thing 
was, give me one second .. .. 

Mr. Buckson: Alex, I appreciate your testimony. It's clear and concise, it's 
helpful. I've had a few conversations with you in regards to this project. The 
issue really is that, you know as we stated and you clearly understand Mr. Murphy 
had a right. He had an access of which to be here tonight to present his case and 
so that's why we have to address it, recognizing that we also can fully implement 
the current Comp Plan vote no or recognize as we've stated earlier that there's 
significant infrastructure and we should have expected this. It's a little bit late in 
the game but we are now establishing a committee that's going to try and address 
this, I've invited you to be a part of that process. I wanted to address one or two 
things. I did talk to or attempt to talk to the hotel owners. I played phone tag, did 
receive a voice message indicating their opposition. My concern is that then I 
become the one to decide what investment is a good investment. Am I the one 
that says you can't buy that because if you put a hotel in there I'm telling you 
that's not a wise investment? I don't know ifthat's my role. You know although I 
recognize that whomever decides to invest in that property better do their 
homework and recognize that the numbers, according to you don't add up. But I 
don't think I need to decide that, I think that's the investor that decides that. But I 
want to make assure you that I did, I did try to talk to them. As far as the right in, 
I believe it hasn't changed; I believe I reviewed in my current packet and email 
exchange which indicated that Del-Dot is still receptive to a right in, is that still 
correct? 

Ms. Keifer: They're certainly open to considering it. I don't think they've made a 
commitment one way or the other. 

Mr. Buckson: Make sure that I've answered that accurately for you. Anyway, 
okay. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay, thanks, I remember. I wanted to tell you this right up front. 
It's coming. Don't mistake, don't keep referring to the 2008 Comp Plan, that it 
doesn't fit the Comp Plan, that it doesn't fit our growth zone. The new Comp Plan 
is going to address this economic driver in that area so you have to understand 
these properties, this construction whether it's Mr. Murphy's property or any of 
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the other four or five around it this construction's coming. We're giving the 
residence there enough time to get involved with the process to at least understand 
that it's coming but this was an economic driver. No promises were made that we 
were going to allow hotels in. But once we recognize that the $25 million a year 
that Mr. Eaby brought up this developments coming. What we had someone step 
up and say you're not going to be able to stop it because we're going to need it at 
some point. So the residents who live there need to recognize that this is a very, 
very good possibility. It may not happen tonight, it may not happen in the next 
six months but eventually with the success of that project it's coming. 

Mr. Schmidt: Commissioner I appreciate that and I'm glad to know that our 
voice is a part of this so that we can be heard and I hope that that carries some 
weight. I speak for myself here like I said I don't have any objection to DE Turf, I 
don't have any objection to development it's just unmanaged, uncontrolled 
development where it doesn't belong. As I said there's plenty of area that's better 
suited for it than this property right here. 

Mr. Sweeney: Right, which is why the importance ofthe 2018 Comprehensive 
Plan just plays into everything that we want to do. Then it becomes managed 
growth which is how we address the development growth, growth that came from 
the 2006 era. And it was all through managed growth from that point forward; 
we are now having to address this in the same way. 

Mr. Schmidt: One last thing I want to mention, I do have another signed petition 
from a resident in the area objecting to this and he took the time to sign it and give 
it to me so I'm going to take the time to hand it in. 

Mr. Angel: You asked the question about your property ifwe would allow your 
property to be zoned, speaking for myself if it was contiguous, in line like a 
domino, yes I would. But if it's hodge podge spot all over the place, no I 
wouldn't. It has to be contiguous that's one of my litmus, testing and 
infrastructure and development. This is what we've always done this on so that's 
my view on that. I just want to let you know if your property was contiguous and 
you came before us, you get my vote for economic development. 

Carmella Tate: 663 Milford Neck Road, Frederica, DE: For myself! had 
prepared but a lot of that got taken off the table. If that piece goes I would like to 
see the deed. That would really make most of us happy because then it would be 
a guarantee that that would be gone. The other thing that I want to bring up is that 
most people forget that, well we moved down here in 2003. When we moved 
down to Kent County we became members of the Rehoboth Beach-Dewey Beach 
Chamber of Commerce. From the day we started attending those meetings it was 
always planned that overpasses would be built all the way down Route 1 from the 
airbase to move out all those crossovers because there was fatalities that were 
happening across at all those crossovers. So Del-Dot had in their plan back in 
2003 a crossover for every, or an overpass for every crossover. It got pushed 
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back when Secretary Bhatt carne on board because he was entrusted with paying 
off the bills because they were so far in debt they had to be fiscally responsible 
and pay down their debt and he did a really good job with that. And then Ms. 
Cohan came in and she moved back up especially the Milford Neck one because 
when I first looked at the Milford Neck one it was probably number four or five 
on their list and when Secretary Bhatt was there he pushed it down into the 90s. 
So I know that when the DE Turf was being built there was always this push back 
for, are you going to build it or aren't you and Secretary Bhatt would say go 
ahead and build it, you don't need the overpass, just build it. The reason that the 
Chamber of Commerce always brought this up is because they wanted folks to be 
able to come from the airbase, go all the way to the beach without the traffic 
problems that they have, without people trying to get off, get on and there was 
accidents. So, that being said, the amount of land on the peninsula is finite this 
isn't California, we only have so much land. I am in favor of the Comprehensive 
Plan, if you can put that together and we can take another look at it. I know that 
you're going to build. We know that this is going to happen. You can take that 
finger away that makes it a whole different ball game. That's all I have. 

Faye Yonker, 415 Milford Neck Road, Frederica, DE: When the complex was 
coming we all knew that there would be development and all like that, so that's 
not what I'm here against. The only thing that I am against and ask that it be 
changed is that strip, that strip halfway through the woods. That's what we asked 
before and what I'm asking it again and I'm glad that you're going to take this into 
consideration and draw up a new plan. And Mr. Murphy, you say that's 2.6 acres? 

Mr. Murphy: I don't know exactly, Faye what it boils down to, what the map 
shows. 

Mrs. Yonker: Okay, well my husband and I, in front of all these people tonight 
are offering to buy that 2.6 acres. We'd like to get with you at a price so we can 
eliminate that problem of coming out onto the Milford Neck Road and Pritchett 
Road because it's, we feel it's, it goes right behind my son's house ... 

Mr. Murphy: I understand. 

Mr. Banta: Faye, you need to speak into the microphone. We really can't hear 
you. Pull it down. Thank you. Good to see you by the way. 

Mrs. Yonker: Okay, my husband and I just offered in front of you and everybody 
to offer, we're offering to buy that 2.6 acres to alleviate any problems about this 
coming out onto the Milford Neck Road and Pritchett Road because we care 
about the wildlife, our animals, our children using that road. That's all I have to 
say really. Thank you. Any questions? 
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Public Hearing is Closed on LC17-13 

Mr. Buckson: What I'm prepared to do currently is to make a motion to approve 
but we're going to need some Staff assistance. Make a motion to approve the, 
essentially what was stated by Ms. Yonkers which is what I clearly indicated 
when I came here tonight that I was prepared to do. However I need from Staff a 
little assistance. I believe that the 18 acres may be too restrictive, not necessarily 
restrictive, just not warranted but what we need to do is exactly what was stated; 
exclude the finger. And so what I'd like to do is have an indication of how that 
would look. Now that one right there is one that utilizes the 20, that's a new 
applica ... , that's a new look. Okay, its 20.5 acres BG. As you can see it 
indicates where it represents a section that would be deed restricted, so I'm going 
to have to bring the applicant back up and see if that is that acceptable to you. 

Mr. Murphy: Do I need to swear in again? 

Mr. Buckson: I don't know, but I need to make sure you're understanding what 
we're ... 

Mr. Murphy: Yes, I understand. 

Mr. Buckson: ... ofwhat we're making a motion for. 

Mr. Murphy: I understand, Eric. 

Mr. Buckson: Sure. 

Mr. Murphy: Commissioner, Eric, Commissioner Buckson. 

Mr. Buckson: That's fine . 

Mr. Murphy: Do I need to swear in again? 

Mr. W. Pepper: No 

Mr. Murphy: No? 

Catherine Murphy, 3338 Bay Road, Milford, DE: I didn't swear in and I'm part 
of this. I'm the boss. 

Mr. Murphy: To answer your question, Commissioner Buckson absolutely, we 
always have, always will be, try to be a good neighbor. If that was a contention 
that was to seem to be a most logical explanation to all of my neighbors not to 
have traffic on that back road with or without the service road, if indeed it ever 
does get done bottom line is at this point in time to move forward what's best for 
everyone, the County, all the County, not just this area, the Sports Complex, you 
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gentlemen that have given your time to all of us in this meeting tonight, I have no 
problem with that whatsoever. If it's the Yonkers or another neighbor up front 
who has said I want off Route 1, if you guys get off of Route 1, I'll buy that finger 
off of you, we're open to suggestions. So yes we would agree to that. 

Mr. Buckson: Well, appreciate it. Unless you want to weigh in I think we got the 
answer we need. 

Mr. Buckson: I'm prepared to make a motion; I need to make sure I word this 
correctly. I am prepared to make a Motion that we approve LC17-13 specific to 
the 20.5 acres referenced in the exhibit presented to us at this time that's 
contingent - can I say that? - upon a deed restriction being placed upon the 
remaining acreage .. . 

Mr. W. Pepper: Are you going to require that it be subdivided out? 

Mr. Buckson: Whatever it takes to in effect get what we want, which is 
elimination of that parcel of land for any potential entrance use, commercial 
entrance use. 

Mr. W. Pepper: I would you'd want to subdivide the parcel into the 20.5 acre tract 
and then whatever the remainder is ... 

Mr. Buckson: Just remains there. 

Mr. W. Pepper: And deed restrict the remainder to prohibit an entrance. 

Mr. Buckson: So my motion is based on what the Counsel, Attorney has just 
indicated so make that a part of the motion. He clearly stated what it is ; I don't 
want to pretend to mess it up. I'll just say what he said. So I've got that included. 
I base that on recognition of the infrastructure that's currently in place, the 
significant investment there by the State, the wanting to continue to support in a 
modest way the DE Turf and then finally recognizing that we, I believe have a 
path now, a kind of a desire right now to get on this thing and get ahead of it with 
a subcommittee that would look at this area and really take a hard look at how we 
are planning on developing this area. The reason that I don't delay it at this time, 
Mr. Murphy's here, you know, he's here. It is what it is. If he's not here, we had 
this idea in advance of this that's probably the best case scenario. That's not what 
we're facing tonight. So that's my motion; seconded by Mr. Angel. 

Mr. Hosfelt: I guess my question maybe is for Ms. Sarah, we talked about the 
Sewer District, and the fact that there is no infrastructure in place, so this is 
approved, we go forward, this gets approved, and we decide that a hotel's going to 
be built there, who's responsible for, is Kent County responsible to put that 
infrastructure in place? 
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Ms. Keifer: No, whoever the property owner is at the time is going to have to sort 
out how to serve the development whether it's through a contract user agreement, 
I don't know that a septic system could support it, but I can't speak to that. The 
applicant is going to have to sort out how it's served. We would not install 
infrastructure. The County would not be responsible for installing infrastructure. 

Mr. Hosfelt. Okay, thank you. 

Mr. Banta: Mr. Buckson, with your motion make sure I'm understanding this 
correctly. We're going to possibly support a motion to move from the AC/R Zone 
to a BG with no limitations, no public hearings, no Regional Planning 
Commission because with it zoned BG he has a 119 things he could do there and 
all those he could do there by right, the law's very clear on that, he has the right to 
do whatever he chooses to do. I understand what's being said or what is being 
sold, there's nothing to hold anybody back from doing anything else they want to 
do that has to me a serious concern. I think public hearings and democracy works 
well when people have a chance to speak out and they've done that tonight and 
previous meetings on this particular subject. To just carte blanche give this the 
opportunity to have a BG zoning I think is not in the best interest of the entire 
County because this effects 180,000 people, not just 30,000 people in my district 
or the other commissioners district but also Mr. Pepper's district which is the 
entire County which is 180,000 people. I also know that the Comp Plan is in 
preparation, I think it's important as commissioners we abide by the Comp Plan, 
we need to allow the time for that to be taken care of, time to review it and then 
make a decision when that occurs. And thirdly which I think is somewhat 
important which is mentioned a couple oftimes, a Memo of Understanding which 
is not yet been confirmed. And so with those variables, and there's a number of 
those I think we need to rethink our position on your motion, sir. Thank you. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Thank you, Mr. President. I just want to address the 
question that was asked regarding a sanitary sewer also. As been discussed this 
property is currently outside the growth zone and here at the rezoning if the BG 
does not bring it into the growth zone and as I understand it right now the Sewer 
District that was created gives one equivalent dwelling into this property which I 
would foresee that to be a problem in terms of trying to develop it for anything 
more substantial than what it is today and that is a single family residence or 
equivalent flow that would come out of a single family residence. The Sanitary 
Sewer Code Chapter 180 provides that Levy Court may create, expand or extend 
or modify existing sanitary sewer districts within the growth zone. But as was 
mentioned earlier, way earlier in the hearing extension of growth, sewer districts 
outside the growth zone can only be for remediation of existing and removal of 
existing septic systems. So, what I wanted to suggest is that if there's some 
greater potential contemplated with this property that and it is rezoned that it also 
needs to be considered to amend the growth zone boundary to include the 
property in the growth zone. And that's not part of this current application. So I 
just wanted to make that part of the record and make it clear that as I understand 
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it right now whether it's zoned commercial or remains AC it has one equivalent 
dwelling available to it currently. Thank you. 

Roll Call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Buckson. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, but I need a little bit of assistance here. Because not included 
in any motion was anything referencing anything Mr. Petit de Mange said and I 
will say this, the applicant who's gaining a rezoning whomever the person is that 
brings forth a conditional use has to deal with that exact scenario, whether it's 
getting it included in the growth zone or whatever else it might take to gain access 
to the infrastructure that's in place at that time, I don't know if it's a contract user, 
whatever they would be. So my question to Mr. Petit de Mange, regrettably 
holding up the meeting though is, my answer is that it's on the applicant, 
whomever brings forth the conditional use to get that done. Do I need to include 
that in a kind of a motion that we just made? 

Mr. Petit de Mange: I don't know if you can include it in the motion but what I'm 
saying is I believe that to get the property included in the growth zone that is a 
zoning change in and of itself it's not included in this application. It wouldn't be 
part of a conditional use application or a site plan it could not be dealt with in the 
same manner, it is a zoning change. 

Mr. Buckson: The point is you couldn't bring a conditional use for a hotel 
without addressing that concern, that's what I meant by addressing it at the 
conditional stage? 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Yes and what I'm suggesting is going to be another rezoning 
hearing on this application for that purpose or something similar to that because, 
you know it is a zoning change in and of itself. 

Mr. Buckson: Suggest it could be reflected in the Comprehensive Plan and we 
could deal with it at that time if need be, well I know it would need be, it would 
be when they bring it back if they do. Anyway I appreciate it because you 
indicated then, I did not ignore what you were saying I did not need to include it 
at this time? 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Right. 

Mr. Buckson: Alright, so my vote is yes, stating that everything rezoning that we 
do at Levy Court opens up 109 different opportunities so, you know I appreciate 
Mr. Banta's concern but I mean that's what we deal with every single time we do a 
rezoning. My motions yes, my vote is yes. 
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Mr. Hosfelt: Based on what I've heard from the residents who live in and around 
the area and the agreements that have been made, my vote is yes. 

Mr. Howell: This have been a difficult night for me because I've never been at a 
meeting where I've heard so many statements that I've agreed with and very often 
they were conflicting. And I'm going to vote no on this issue for this reason, 
okay, don't be discouraged about that because I do believe that you're going to get 
exactly what you hope for eventually, okay. There are entirely too many 
questions here, too many loose ends that have to be tied and I prefer not to operate 
that way. I think it would be much better to wait. So that basically is why I voted 
against lifting this from the table, because I don't think we're ready to vote. I just 
really don't. So my vote is no. 

Mr. Pepper: Thank you. I hope a lot of people feel a lot better tonight after this 
hearing since there was some questions answered and some agreements made and 
some assurances and to be in particular a deed restriction put on that finger 
property that was in question. Also Del-Dot's requirements to have access off of 
another road so they only allow an "in" flow of traffic and no exit from the same 
property so that really limits amount of properties in this corridor that can occur. 
You know I had some misgivings at the beginning but I think they were all 
answered here tonight, I think that once the Comprehensive Plan is developed I'm 
sure that this property is going to be in that plan and as it's shown tonight and so I 
vote yes as well. 

Mr. Sweeney: I've already pretty much made position clear. I think its 
contingent upon Levy Court to manage growth in the County to avoid any type of 
overgrowth. The 2018 Comprehensive Plan is going to address that. Mr. Murphy 
you've got your four votes for tonight, we don't need a super majority to, for you 
to win this. But my vote's going to be no but I hope that this brings to light 
whether you're supporting Mr. Murphy, you live in the area, you're a neighbor of 
Mr. Murphy or you're from the town of Frederica; you're affected by this. Please 
watch our website, contact our planning department, find out when those meeting 
are for that Comprehensive Plan and engage with what's going on in the County. 
Don't wait for something like this to come up for you to come to Levy Court to 
express your opinion. You have an opportunity to get involved; do it. Please. At 
this point my vote's no. 

Mr. Banta: Based on my previous statements in regard to taking an AC/AR piece 
of land and transferring it to BG which opens it up to over 1 00 different things 
that could be placed there and we don't have contract zoning so we don't know 
what's coming there, there'll be no more public hearings on the issue, it will not go 
before Regional Planning Commission so there'll be no chance for anybody to do 
anything and most importantly the Memorandum of Understanding which has 
never been executed I think is a contingent part of this program, so with that being 
said I vote no. 
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Roll Call reveals four ( 4) yeas; three (3) nays. LC 17-13 has been approved. 

Mr. Angel: 
1. Ordinance LC17-07, An Ordinance to amend the Comprehensive Plan 

Map Designation and the Official Zoning Map of Kent County, Delaware 
pursuant to the provisions of Kent County Code, Vol. II, Chapter 205 
Zoning, Article III, Section 205-8 and Section 205-9, and Article XXVIII 
(changes and amendments) effective December 01,2000, as amended. 
(Applicants I Owners: Jessica & Jacqueline Valladares; Ordinance #I 
Application#: LC17-07 I CZ-17-04; Proposed Zoning District: BG 
(General Business); Area & Location I ID#: Area of Petition: 0.23+ 
acres on the east side ofN DuPont Hwy (U.S. Rt. 13), 356ft+ north of the 
intersection with Fast Landing Road (Co. Rd. 14), east of Cheswold I LC-
00-046.02-01-25 .00-000 

Ms. Keifer: The next item before the Levy Court is Ordinance LC 1 7-07. 
Ordinance LC 1 7-07 is an application to revise both the zoning map and the 
Comprehensive Plan land use map. The site is currently zoned IG General 
Industrial and is shown for industrial uses in. .. The proposal is to change the 
Zoning Map and the Comprehensive Land Plan Use Map to BG General Business 
and Highway Commercial. The site is only .23 of an acre on the east side of 
Route 13 north ofthe intersection with Fast Landing Road, east of Cheswold. 
The Regional Planning Commission took testimony at their July 6th hearing and 
at their July 13th business meeting voted unanimously to recommend approval 
siting that it does indeed comport with Comprehensive Plan and is in keeping 
with the character of the surrounding area. So again this comes with a 
recommendation for approval, I'm happy to answer any questions you might 

have. 

Public Hearing is Open On LC17-07 

IN FAVOR 

Jessica Valladares, 1944 Millington Road, Clayton, DE: I'm actually the 
applicant as well. Right now we're using it, we bought the property, we didn't 
know it was zoned IG unfortunately. We are trying to use it for our car sales and 
auto repair that we have. We, right now there's only a fenced in area there and a 
little bit of space on the gravel front for employee parking. We use the fenced in 
area to keep cars that are waiting for repair, to be sold or vehicles that are for the 
public that have been repaired and that are waiting to be picked up. If you guys 
have any questions? 

Mr. Pepper: How long have you been operating? 
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Ms. Valladares: I took over the business from my father in 2014. He was 
operating there since 201 0 previous to us. 

Mr. Pepper: So you're just here to correct... 

07118117 

Ms. Valladares: Yes to correct it and so that I'm able to use it and I can get the 
Certificate of Occupancy and all of that because unfortunately I guess when he 
came in he didn't look into getting any of that done unfortunately so I'm just 
trying to correct the issues and get everything straight. 

Mr. Pepper: Great, I appreciate that. Just for curiosity's sake, what was the 
property used for to make it be zoned IG, I don't recall? 

Ms. Valladares: I'm not sure, when we came in it was vacant, there was nothing 
there at all, just the fence. The gentleman that we bought it from didn't say what 
they had used it for either. The gentleman that we bought the main property from 
says that it was one whole property but they split it up into two and he doesn't 
even know they used that separate property for. 

Mr. Pepper: As far as I can remember it's been used for a car lot. 

Ms. Valladares: Yeah, me too. 

Mr. Pepper: That's great, I appreciate that. 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing is Closed On Ordinance LC17-07 

Mr. Angel: Ordinance LC17-07, I Move to approve based on the RPC approval 
and no opposition; seconded by Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, based on Regional Planning Commission's approval, Staff 
recommendation and no public opposition. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on no public opposition. 

Mr. Howell: Yes. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, based on all the reasons previously stated. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated and it is righting a wrong. 
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Mr. Banta: Based on recommendations of the Regional Planning Commission 
and the Staff and no opposition, I vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LC 17-07 has been approved. 

Mr. Hosfelt: 
1. Ordinance LC17-15, An Ordinance to amend the Comprehensive 

Plan Map Designation and the Official Zoning Map of Kent County, 
Delaware pursuant to the provisions of Kent County Code, Vol. II, 
Chapter 205 Zoning, Article III, Section 205-8 and Section 205-9, and 
Article XXVIII (changes and amendments) effective December 01, 2000, 
as amended. (Reference: Ordinance# I Application #: LC 17-15 I CZ-17-
09; Proposed Zoning District: BG (General Business); Area & 
Location/ID#: 3.77± acres on east side ofS DuPont Hwy. (US Rt. 13) 
across from the terminus ofPOW/MIA Pkwy, north of Camden I ED-00-
085 .20-01-09. 00-000). 

Ms. Keifer: Ordinance LC 17-15 is another request to amend both the Zoning 
Map and the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map. The site is currently 
Industrial it's zoned IG. The proposal is to change it to Highway Commercial and 
BG General Business. The site itself is 3. 7 acres on the east side of Route 13 just 

across from the terminus ofthe West Dover Connector, north of Camden. The 
Regional Planning Commission took testimony at their July 6th hearing and at 
their July 13th business meeting voted unanimously to recommend approval again 
because the proposal comports with the Comprehensive Plan, the area in general 
has been transitioning to commercial, it is keeping with the character of the area. 

So again this comes with a recommendation for approval. 

Public Hearing is Open on Ordinance LC17-15 

IN FAVOR 

James Taylor, 5400 Limestone Road, Wilmington, DE: As was mentioned by 
the Staff the proposal is to rezone the subject property from IG to BG; was a 
vacant lot about 3.7 acres and has kind of sat there vacant for a while. The owner 
would like to develop it as a General Business. As you can see from the 
Comprehensive Pan it falls within the business zone and would be a suitable 
property. Any questions? 

Mr. Sweeney: Thank you Mr. President. I was in Punta Cana reading the minutes 
from this meeting and let me just say that I was in a great place and in the minutes 
it mentions that it is a super "fun," f, u, n site, not a super fund. I was in a super 
fun place. So I just want to say I got a really good laugh out of reading that it was 
a super "fun" place, so. 
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Mr. Taylor: That's what I hope, that it's a super fun there once it's developed. 

Mr. Sweeney: I did see the recommendations so all of the areas that were 
identified as requiring the super fund classification have been mitigated? 

Mr. Taylor: Yeah, we're currently in the process of .. . We got approved from 
DNREC for our plan. Once the property gets developed the plan will be 
implemented and all the environmental concerns will be taken care of according 
to DNREC's procedures. 

Mr. Sweeney: Alright, thank you. 

Mr. Taylor: Yup. 

IN OPPOSITION - None 

Public Hearing is Closed on Ordinance LC17-15 

Mr. Hosfelt: In regards to Ordinance LC 17-15 I Move for approval based on the 
fact the RPC had unanimous approval, there's no opposition and Staff 
recommends it; seconded by Mr. Pepper and Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, based on positive recommendation by RPC and Staff and no 
public opposition. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, for the reasons stated. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, reasons stated and it's good to see this piece of property finally 
be utilized for something that will put it back on good tax rolls. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated and Mrs. Tieman is very much in 
agreement with this. 

Mr. Banta: Yeah, based on Staff recommendation, positive recommendation of 
the Regional Planning Commission, no opposition, I vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LC 17-15 has been approved. 
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PUBLIC HEARINGS CLOSED 

Recess to Committee Meetings- 9:43 

Reconvene Business Meeting 

Old Business -None 

New Business 

Action Items from the Committee Meeting 

Mr. Sweeney: 
1. I Move to approve Resolution 3658, A Resolution for Outdoor 

Recreation, Parks and Trails Grant Funding; seconded by Mr. Pepper; 
carried by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 

2. I Move to award the 2-year contract for Printing Services ofthe Kent 
County Levy Court Newsletter and Parks and Recreation Brochure to FNP 
Printing and Publishing of Frederick, MD for a base bid amount of 
$8,434.00 per printing, and further authorize the President of Levy Court 
to sign said contract; seconded by Mr. Angel; carried by roll call vote 
seven (7) yeas. 

Other Business 

Mr. Pepper: 
Move to go into Executive Session immediately following the Business Meeting 
for preliminary discussion on site acquisition for a publicly funded capital 
improvement; legal strategy session regarding collective bargaining or pending or 
potential litigation; and personnel matters pursuant to 29 Del. C. 1 0004(b) (2), ( 4 ), 
and (9); seconded by Mr. Sweeney; carried by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Information Items - None 

Public Comments 

Mr. John Greene: Whatever happened to the idea that there wasn't supposed to 
be any construction, buildings and things like that of an industrial nature on the 
east side of 1? I remember coming to meetings and that was part of the topics you 
didn' t want because of the bay. It' s just a question. 

Mr. Banta: You are correct; I would have Mr. Buckson answer that. 

Mr. Greene: It just crossed my mind. 
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Mr. Buckson: It's probably a rhetorical question. The answer that I'll give you, 
you're correct, but ... 

Mr. Greene: But ... 

Mr. Buckson: Exactly adjacent to Route 1, where the State has invested 
significant sums of money I think there' s some merit and logic in introducing 
some commercial development right there at the overpass. I'm not asking to 
extend it back into Kitts Hummock . .. 

Mr. Greene: There's plenty ofland on the other side of that road. 

Mr. Buckson: I understand that but with the investment that's been made, who 
am I to say, okay, right across the highway you're good to go but on this side of 
the highway you don't get the golden . ... 

Mr. Greene: Well, that's the way it was presented .. . 

Mr. Buckson: Agreed, agreed. 

Mr. Greene: Okay, thank you. 

Mr. Banta: You're correct, Mr. Greene, we appreciate your comments, thank you 
very much, sir. 

Commissioner Comments - None 

Motion to Adjourn was made by Mr. Sweeney; seconded by Mr. Hosfelt; carried 
by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 9:53 p.m. 
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